










































































Financial Results

Financial Results December 31, 2020
(Rs’000)

December 31, 2019
(Rs’000)

Profit before taxa�on

Less WWF

Less: Taxa�on-Current

- Prior year

- Deferred

Profit a�er taxa�on

Earnings per share (Rupees)

1,204,072

(24,081)

(549,449)

(52,310)

327,947

906,159

3.19

Transfer to Reserve

As per the requirements of Microfinance Institution Ordinance, 2001 and the Prudential Regulations for 
Microfinance Banks issued by the State Bank of Pakistan, the Bank has transferred an amount equivalent to 
20% of profit after tax to the statutory reserve, i.e. PKR. 181.231 million and 5% of profit after tax to the 
Depositors' Protection Fund, i.e. PKR. 45.307 million during 2020.

Capital Adequacy Ratio

As of the balance sheet date, the Bank's equity for capital adequacy purpose and Capital Adequacy Ratio 
stood at PKR. 6,615 million and 21.69% respectively, as against the minimum requirement of PKR.1, 000 
million and, 15%, as prescribed by SBP.

Number of Directors and Remuneration

The Bank has a total of eight directors, excluding President & CEO, out of which six are Non-executive 
directors and two are independent directors. There is female representation on the UMBL Board.
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310,713

(6,214)

(81,448)

(1,318)

31,915

253,648 

1.11
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S.No

1.

2.

3.

4.

Outgoing Directors

Mr. Sahibzada Mansoor Ali 

Mr. Amir Siddiqi

Mr. Moqeem-ul-Haque

Mr. Javed Iqbal

Incoming Directors

Ms. Misbah Naqvi

Mr. Jahanzeb Rahim 

Mr. Sher Afgan Khan
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Mr. Tariq Mohar 
*(FPT awaited)

Holding Company

On August 30, 2012, Pakistan Telecommunication Company Limited (PTCL) acquired 100% shareholding 
of Rozgar Microfinance Bank Limited, incorporated in Karachi on October 29, 2003 under the Companies 
Ordinance, 1984, and its name was changed to U Microfinance Bank Limited (UMBL) with effect from 
December 7, 2012. On January 31, 2013, the Bank was granted license by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) 
for commencement of nationwide operations. On July 11, 2013, approval for the nationwide commercial 
launch of Branchless Banking Services (BBS) was received from the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP).

Corporate Governance

The Bank's management, being responsible for establishing and maintaining an adequate and effective 
system of internal controls and procedures, evaluates the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control 
system and reviews significant policies and procedures. To make these functions more effective & 
independent Board Sub - Committees have been set-up to provide the necessary oversight.

Statements of Compliance with the code of Corporate Governance

The Directors are pleased to state that:

 a)  The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Bank fairly presents its state 
of affairs encompassing; result of operations, cash flows and changes in equity;

 b) Proper books of account of the Bank have been maintained;

 c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial 
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;

 d) International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan and adopted by the 

Change in Composition of Board of Directors

There was no casual vacancy on the Board during the year 2020. Details of the Directors replaced are as 
follows: 
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Mr. Burak Sevilengul 

Mr. Mohammad Nadeem Khan

Mr. Muhammad Amir Siddiqi 
(Resigned on July 24th, 2020)

Mr. Mohamed Essa Al Taheri

Mr. Moqeem ul Haque
(Resigned on July 24th, 2020)

Mr. Sahibzada Mansoor Ali
(Resigned on April 28th, 2020)

Mr. Javed Iqbal
(Resigned on October 12th, 2020)

Mr. Aqueel Malik

Ms. Misbah Naqvi

Mr. Sher Afgan Khan 

Mr. Jahanzeb Rahim

Mr. Kabeer Naqvi 

Chairman

Board Member Designation

Mr. Tariq Mohar
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State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), have been followed in preparation of the Bank's financial 
statements, and departures, if any, have been adequately disclosed;

 e) The system of internal control has been effectively implemented and monitored;

 f) There are no significant doubts upon the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern;

 g) During the year, seven board meetings were held. These meetings were attended by the 
following directors:

03

Total No of
meetings

Meetings
Attended

03

Acting Chairman 

Director

04

03

04

02

Following are the changes that took place in the Board of Directors composition during the year ended 
December 31, 2020:

th
  Ÿ Mr. Burak Sevilengul was appointed as the Chairman Board on May 14 , 2020. Prior to 

this, Mr. Nadeem Khan was serving as the Acting Chairman of the Board of Directors.  

Director

Director

Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Director

Independent Director

Director

Director

Independent Director

President & CEO /Director

05

07

05

04

07

03

02

01

01

-

07

05

06

05

04

04

03

02

01

01

-

07
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  Ÿ Mr. Sahibzada Mansoor Ali resigned as an Independent Director UMBL Board and was 
threplaced by the incumbent Ms. Misbah Naqvi as an Independent Director on April 28 , 

2020.

  Ÿ  Mr. Moqeem-ul- Haque resigned as a Director UMBL Board and was replaced by the 
th

incumbent Mr. Sher Afgan Khan on July 24 , 2020.

  Ÿ  Mr. Amir Siddiqi resigned as a Director UMBL Board and was replaced by the 
thincumbent Mr. Jahanzeb Rahim on July 24 , 2020.

  Ÿ  Mr. Javed Iqbal resigned as an Independent Director UMBL Board and was replaced by 
th

the incumbent Mr. Tariq Mohar on October 12 , 2020. Mr. Tariq Mohar's FPT clearance 
is awaited.

 h) Each Director on the Board of U Microfinance Bank Limited (UMBL) holds a qualification 
share and no director has acquired any share in the Bank during the year.

Payment of Debts:

The Bank remains solvent with regards to its debt obligation and there has been no single instance of delay 
in discharging its legal obligations.

Internal Audit

The Bank has an independent Internal Audit Department with experienced professionals with industry 
exposure. The Chief Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee of the Board. However, the 
Chief Internal Auditor administratively reports to the President & CEO.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently consists of two Non-Executive Directors (Mr. Nadeem Khan & Mr. Sher 
Afgan Khan) and one Independent Director (Ms. Misbah Naqvi). Ms. Misbah Naqvi is the Chairperson of 
the committee.

Credit Rating

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited, based on the Bank's financial position, has assigned the entity 
rating to 'A' (Single A) for the long-term and 'A-1' (A One) for the short-term, with outlook assigned as 
'Stable'.

Principal Risk and uncertainties

The Banking industry is one of the most highly regulated industries in Pakistan. The State Bank of Pakistan 
(SBP) not only regularly keeps a check on each and every unit of the industry by frequently inspecting 
affairs of the Banks, but has also put various stress indicators, such as Minimum Capital Requirement 
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1 07

308,571,422

01 to 07

08 to 308,571,422

Directors (Qualifying Shares)

2 PTCL

S.No. No Shares Distinctive No Held by

(MCR), Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR), Cash Reserve Requirement (CRR) and Statutory Liquidity Reserve 
(SLR)-requirement. During the year, the Bank remained compliant with all the regulatory requirements. 
In addition, the Bank also maintained high quality of its asset portfolio including investments and 
maintained industry standard liquidity, stress and delinquency ratios.

External Auditors

The present auditors, Messers KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.  Chartered Accountants (KPMG), will be retiring in 
the upcoming Annual General Meeting and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment. 
The Audit Committee of the board has recommended the reappointment of KPMG for next year. 
Accordingly, the Board of Directors endorses the recommendation of the Audit Committee for 
appointment of KPMG, as the statutory auditors of the Bank for the next year at the agreed fee. The 
external auditor's re-appointment shall be subject to approval in the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting.

Related Party Transactions 

Related parties of the Bank comprise of parent company, associated company, directors, key 
management personnel and employees' retirement benefit funds. Detail of the Bank's shareholders is 
given in note 17 of the Bank's Annual Audited Financial Statements. PTCL, the parent company, holds 
100% shares of the Bank, therefore, all subsidiaries and associated undertakings of PTCL are related 
parties of the Bank. Also, the Bank has related party relationships with its directors, key management 
personnel, entities over which the directors are able to exercise significant influence and employees' 
retirement benefit funds. Transactions with related parties were carried out in the ordinary course of 
business. Detail of transactions during the period and balances outstanding as at the period ended 31 Dec 
2019 are disclosed in note 36 of the Bank's Annual Audited Financial Statements. 

Events after Balance Sheet Date

There have not been any material events that occurred subsequent to the date of the Balance Sheet, that 
require adjustments to the enclosed financial statements, except those which have already been made or 
disclosed.

Pattern of Shareholding

The pattern of Shareholding as at December 31, 2020.
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President and Chief Executive Officer
Islamabad

08 February 2021
 

Chairman
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Earning Per share

Earnings per share of the Bank for the year ended 2020 is PKR. 3.19 compared to PKR. 1.11 as at end of 
year 2019.

Appreciation & Acknowledgment

We take this opportunity to express gratitude to our customers and business partners for their continued 
support and trust. We offer sincere appreciation to the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), for its unwavering 
support in a particularly difficult year. A heartfelt thanks is also extended to the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and Central Depository Company (CDC), for their guidance and 
cooperation. Finally, we are also thankful to our associates, the Bank's management and staff for their 
committed services provided to our valued customers.
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01 to 07

08 to 308,571,422

Directors (Qualifying Shares)

2 PTCL

S.No. No Shares Distinctive No Held by
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Mr. Burak Sevilengul 

Mr. Mohammad Nadeem Khan

Mr. Muhammad Amir Siddiqi 
(Resigned on July 24th, 2020)

Mr. Mohamed Essa Al Taheri

Mr. Moqeem ul Haque
(Resigned on July 24th, 2020)

Mr. Sahibzada Mansoor Ali
(Resigned on April 28th, 2020)

Mr. Javed Iqbal
(Resigned on October 12th, 2020)

Mr. Aqueel Malik

Ms. Misbah Naqvi

Mr. Sher Afgan Khan 

Mr. Jahanzeb Rahim

Mr. Kabeer Naqvi 

Chairman

Board Member Designation

Mr. Tariq Mohar
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Independent Director
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Director

Independent Director
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S.No

1.

2.

3.

4.

Outgoing Directors

Mr. Sahibzada Mansoor Ali 

Mr. Amir Siddiqi

Mr. Moqeem-ul-Haque

Mr. Javed Iqbal

Incoming Directors

Ms. Misbah Naqvi

Mr. Jahanzeb Rahim 

Mr. Sher Afgan Khan

Mr. Tariq Mohar
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Financial Results
December 31, 2020

(Rs’000)
December 31, 2019

(Rs’000)

Profit before taxa�on

Less WWF

Less: Taxa�on-Current

- Prior year

- Deferred

Profit a�er taxa�on

Earnings per share (Rupees)

1,204,072

(24,081)

(549,449)

(52,310)

327,947

906,159

3.19

310,713

(6,214)

(81,448)

(1,318)

31,915

253,648 

1.11

46Annual Report 2020 



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the members of U Microfinance Bank Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of U Microfinance Bank Limited (the Bank), which 
comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2020, and the profit and loss account, the statement of 
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the cash flow statement for the year then 
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accoun�ng policies and 
other explanatory informa�on, and we state that we have obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons 
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the balance 
sheet, profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in 
equity and the cash flow statement together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the 
accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan, and give the informa�on required by the 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), Microfinance ins�tu�ons Ordinance, 2001 and the direc�ves issued by 
the State Bank of Pakistan in the manner so required and respec�vely give a true and fair view of the state 
of the Bank's affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of the profit, the comprehensive income, the changes in 
equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Interna�onal Standards on Audi�ng (ISAs) as applicable in 
Pakistan. Our responsibili�es under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibili�es 
for the Audit of the Financial Statements sec�on of our report. We are independent of the Bank in 
accordance with the interna�onal Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants, as adopted by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibili�es of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

The management is responsible for the prepara�on and fair presenta�on of the financial statements in 
accordance with the accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), Microfinance Ins�tu�ons Ordinance, 2001 and the direc�ves issued by 
the State Bank of Pakistan and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the prepara�on of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to 
con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accoun�ng unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease 
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opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so. 

The Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial repor�ng process. 

Auditors' Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit, in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional scep�cism throughout the audit. We also: 

Ÿ    Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override 
of internal control. 

 Ÿ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effec�veness of the Bank's internal control. 

 Ÿ Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng 
es�mates and related disclosures made by management. 

 Ÿ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to con�nue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our auditors' 
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of 
our auditors' report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the Bank to cease to con�nue 
as a going concern. 

 Ÿ Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presenta�on. 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and 
�ming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we iden�fy during our audit. 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

 a) Proper books of account have been kept by the Bank as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 
2017); 

 b) The balance sheet, profit and loss account, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement 
of changes in equity and the cash flow statement together with the notes thereon have been drawn 
up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), Microfinance Ins�tu�ons Ordinance, 
2001 and the direc�ves issued by the State Bank of Pakistan and are in agreement with the books of 
account and returns; 

 c) Investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the 
purpose of the Bank's business; and 

 d) Zakat deduc�ble at source under the Zakat and Usher Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was 
deducted by the Bank and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under sec�on 7 of that 
Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resul�ng in this independent auditors' report is Riaz Pesnani. 

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Islamabad
25 March 2021
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PRESIDENT / CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

ASSETS

Cash and balances with SBP and NBP

Balances with other Banks/ NBFIs/ MFBs

Lending to financial ins�tu�on

Investments - net of provisions

Advances - net of provisions

Opera�ng fixed assets

Other assets

Deferred tax asset

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and other accounts

Borrowings

Subordinated debt

Other liabili�es

Deferred tax liabili�es

Total Liabili�es

Net Assets

REPRESENTED BY:

Share capital

Discount on issue of share capital

Advance against issue of shares

Statutory and general reserves

Depositors' protec�on fund

Unappropriated profit

Surplus / (deficit) on revalua�on of assets

Deferred grants

Total Capital

MEMORANDUM / OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2020

Note Rupees

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

3,160,116,831 

         1,908,209,748 

            450,000,000 

       24,074,499,338 

       30,006,298,899 

         2,917,413,581 

         7,797,247,350 

            399,616,598 

       70,713,402,345 

             

           

-                               

             

           

                

             

                  

          

14

15

16

17

       46,104,640,853 

       13,274,190,642 

         2,799,160,000 

         2,860,212,627 

       65,038,204,122

           

             

             

                

-                               

           

             

18

19

5.13.1

5.13.2

             

                 

                

                  

                

            

20

21

628,774 

                1,409,888

                        

                              

         5,675,198,223             

22

2019

Rupees

            

           

                              

            

           

               

            

                  

           

          

            

            

               

-                              

          

            

            

                

               

                 

                

             

                        

                               

             

         5,675,198,223

3,085,714,290 

            (25,714,290)

         1,000,000,000 

            410,876,256 

            102,719,064 

         1,099,564,241 

         5,673,159,561 

1,717,205,410

3,019,826,466

6,969,538,668

21,374,079,265

3,104,521,964

3,828,677,455

76,354,529

40,090,203,757 

-

23,290,259,471

6,733,331,333

4,599,400,000

2,416,350,107

       37,039,340,911

3,050,862,846 

2,285,714,290 

            (25,714,290)

-

            229,644,265 

              57,411,066 

            512,586,043 

         3,059,641,374

(8,778,528)

-

            3,050,862,846 
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Mark-up / return / interest earned

Mark-up / return / interest expensed

Net mark-up / interest income

Provision against non-performing loans and advances

Provision for diminu�on in the value of investments

Bad debts wri�en off directly

Net mark-up / interest  income a�er provisions

NON MARK-UP / NON INTEREST INCOME

Fee, commission and brokerage income

Dividend income

Other income

Total non-markup / non interest income

NON MARK-UP / NON INTEREST EXPENSES

Administra�ve expenses

Other provisions / write offs

Other charges

Total non-markup / non interest expenses

Extra ordinary / unusual items

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Worker Welfare Fund (WWF)

TAXATION

Current 

Prior years

Deferred

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION

Unappropriated profit brought forward 

Less: Other comprehensive income

Profit available for appropria�on

APPROPRIATIONS:
Transfer to:

Statutory reserves

    Capital reserve

    Contribu�on to MSDF / DFP / RMF

    Revenue reserve

    Interim cash dividend Rs. 0.32 paisa per share (2019: Nil)

UNAPPROPRIATED PROFIT CARRIED FORWARD

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2020

Rupees

23

          

24

        

         

10.3

          

-

                          

                          

          

25

             

-

                           

26

               

             

          

27
          

-
                           

28
                 

          

-                           

             

             

             

           

                 

               
29

           

             

               

               

             

             

                           

               

                           

             

             

             

33 3.19

                          

2019

Rupees
       

      

                       

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

Note

10,133,879,505 

    (4,341,888,111)

      5,791,991,394 

    (1,578,024,398)

           (1,841,681)

      4,212,125,315 

          

           

-

                           

-

                           

          

             

-

                           
               

             

          

          

-
                           

                 

          

-                           

             

             

             

           

                 

               

           

             

               

               

 

             
-

                           

               

-

                           

             

             

10.3

1,124,650,050 

         138,370,093 

      1,263,020,143 

      5,475,145,458 

4,265,595,760 

             5,477,000 

      4,271,072,760 

         1,204,072,698

(24,081,454)

1,179,991,244 

           (549,448,880)

(52,310,066)

327,927,656

(273,831,290)

            906,159,954 

512,586,043 

             7,358,233 

      1,426,104,230 

181,231,991 

           45,307,998 

         100,000,000 

         326,539,989 

      1,099,564,241 

-   

-   

-

2,585,352,781

7,266,317,884

(3,842,508,867)

3,423,809,017 

(809,740,000)

(28,716,236)

900,356,644

39,075,818

939,432,462

3,524,785,243

3,206,406,891

  

7,665,076

3,214,071,967

310,713,276

(6,214,266)

304,499,010

(81,447,841)

(1,317,977)

31,915,009 

(50,850,809)

253,648,201

324,888,330

(2,538,438)

575,998,093

50,729,640

12,682,410 

63,412,050 

512,586,043 

1.11

PRESIDENT / CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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2020 2019

Note  Rupees  Rupees 

Profit for the year      906,159,954       

Other comprehensive income for the year

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account:

Remeasurement loss on defind benefit liability - gratuity          

Related tax           

         

Comprehensive income for the year transferred to equity       

Components of comprehensive income for the year not transferred to equity:

Items that may be reclassified to profit and loss:

Surplus / (deficit) on revalua�on of available for sale investments 20               

Related tax effect                

              

Total comprehensive income for the year      922,925,489       

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

      

         

          

         

      

              

               

              

      

10,363,709 

      (3,005,476)

       7,358,233 

   913,518,187 

17.3.3

13

        11,067,414

(1,660,112)

9,407,302 

20

     253,648,201 

(3,785,206)

       1,246,768 

      (2,538,438)

   251,109,763 

(10,287,681)

1,538,352 

(8,749,329)

     242,360,434 

PRESIDENT / CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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2019

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES Note  Rupees  Rupees 

Profit before taxa�on       1,179,991,244 

                         

Less: Dividend income -

                           

      1,179,991,244 

            

Adjustments for non-cash charges

    Deprecia�on of property and equipment

    Amor�za�on of intangible assets

    Deprecia�on of right of use assets

    Provisions against non-performing advances

    Advances wri�en off against provision

    Provision for gratuity

    Gain on sale of fixed assets

    Finance charges on leased assets

11.2
11.3
11.4
10.3
10.3
27

27

359,818,212 
          35,647,218 
        264,975,496 
     1,579,866,079 
      (775,030,493)
          35,436,791 
             (127,686)
        178,910,741 
     1,679,496,358 
     2,859,487,602 

            
              

            

           

              

                  

                   

            

         

Increase in opera�ng assets

Advances (9,437,055,220)
   (3,987,752,946)

 
 

            5,137,705 
   22,814,381,382 

 
          80,586,470 
     9,475,297,391 
   12,334,784,993 

        

Other assets (excluding advance taxa�on)

        

Increase in opera�ng liabili�es

Bills payables
Deposits and other accounts
Other liabili�es (excluding current tax, bills payable 
finance lease and provision for gratuity)

              

         

            

         

Net cash (used in) / generated from opera�ons
         

Payments against provisions held against off-balance sheet obliga�ons
                           

Gratuity paid
Income taxes paid

17.3.10        (34,158,605)
(89,281,448)

12,211,344,940 

          

Net cash (used in) / generated from opera�ng ac�vi�es
         

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(10,964,485,954)

   (6,120,000,000)

      (450,000,000)

      (433,854,252)

          10,524,928 

 (17,957,815,278)

           

         

          

               

        

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Payments of subordinated loan

Borrowings obtained during the year

Borrowings repaid during the year

Payments of lease obliga�ons

Dividend paid

Net cash generated from financing ac�vi�es

         

                  

        Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

          331,294,703

4,737,031,876 

       

         

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 30       5,068,326,579        

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

2020

Cash Flow Statement
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

-

                           

 

            
              

           

          

             

                 

                  

           

        

       

        

              

         

            

         

         

                           
          

       

         

           

         

           

                

         

        

                 

        

       

              

        

          

        
       

         

       

-

Net investments in available for sale securi�es - Government securi�es

Net investments in term deposits receipts

Lending to financial ins�tu�on

Investments in opera�ng fixed assets

Sale proceeds of property and equipment disposed-off

Net cash used in inves�ng ac�vi�es

(240,000)

 136,987,490,862 

(130,446,631,553)

      (362,854,268)

      (100,000,000)

     6,077,765,041 

           304,499,010 

           304,499,010 

        196,292,565 
          23,868,065 
        129,093,001 
        838,456,236 
      (535,634,449)
          29,504,965 
               (59,290)
          95,923,953 
        777,445,046 
     1,081,944,056 

(4,657,062,896)
   (1,478,927,212)

 
 

          (9,463,692)
     2,755,489,076 

 
        264,776,108 

   (3,125,188,616)
   (2,043,244,560)

(41,091,375)
      (77,152,128)

   (2,161,488,063)

(5,012,002,278)

(1,158,253,618)

59,290 

(6,170,196,606)

-   

-   

-

         

                 

 
           584,018,713 

         

(240,000)

2,300,003,032 

(1,576,671,699)

(139,072,620)

      (7,747,665,956)

     12,484,697,832 

       4,737,031,876 

53 Annual Report 2020 

PRESIDENT / CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR



                        

Revenue reserve

Discount on issue 

of share capital
Statutory reserve

Depositors' 

protec�on fund

Unappropriated 

profit
Total

Balance at 31 December 2017 -          (25,714,290)          178,914,625           44,728,656          324,888,330       2,808,531,611 

-

                       

-

                       

-

                       

-          253,648,201

(2,538,438)

251,109,763 

         253,648,201

(2,538,438)

251,109,763 
Other comprehensive income -

                       

-

                       

-

                       

-

Total comprehensive income -

                       

-

                       

-

                       

-

Transfer to: -

Statutory reserve -

                       

-

                       

          50,729,640 

          

-          (50,729,640) -

Depositors' Protec�on Fund -

                       

-

                       

          12,682,410          (12,682,410) -

                        

                                                                     

                                                                     

                                                                     

                                                      

Transac�ons with owners, recorded directly in equity

Contribu�ons and distribu�ons

Interim cash dividend -

-

-

- - - - -

Issue of ordinary shares - - - - -

Balance at 31 December 2019

     

      (25,714,290)

         

      229,644,265 

        

        57,411,066       512,586,043    3,059,641,374 

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Capital reserves

Rupees

Profit for the year

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

- - - -       906,159,954

7,358,233

913,518,187 

906,159,954

7,358,233

913,518,187 
Other comprehensive income - - - -

Total comprehensive income - - - -

Transfer to:

Statutory reserve - -       181,231,991 -     (181,231,991)

      (45,307,998)

-

Depositors' Protec�on Fund - -         45,307,998 -

                                                                     

                                                                     

                                                      

Profit for the year

Balance at 31 December 2020    1,000,000,000       (25,714,290)       410,876,256       102,719,064    1,099,564,241    5,673,159,561 

Share capital

      2,285,714,290 

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

   2,285,714,290 

-

-

-

-

-

   3,085,714,290 

Advance against
issue of shares

Transac�ons with owners, recorded directly in equity

Contribu�ons and distribu�ons

Interim cash dividend Rs. 0.32 paisa per share

Conversion of subordinated debt as advance against issue

of preference shares 

Issue of ordinary shares

-

   1,000,000,000 

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

    (100,000,000)-

-

      800,000,000 

    (100,000,000)

   1,000,000,000 

      800,000,000 
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Notes To The Financial Statements

1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

 On 30 August 2012, Pakistan Telecommunica�on Company Limited (PTCL , the Parent Company) acquired 100% 

shareholding of Rozgar Microfinance Bank Limited, incorporated in Karachi on 29 October 2003 under the repealed 

Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017), and its name was changed to U Microfinance Bank Limited 

(the Bank) with effect from 07 December 2012. On 31 January 2013, the Bank was granted license by State Bank of 

Pakistan (SBP) for commencement of na�onwide microfinance banking opera�ons.

 On 11 July 2013, approval for the na�onwide commercial launch of Branchless Banking Services (BBS) was received 

from SBP. The Bank commenced commercial opera�ons of BBS on 23 July 2013.

 The Bank's principal business is to assist in s�mula�ng progress, prosperity and social peace in society through crea�on 

of income genera�ng opportuni�es for the small entrepreneur under the Microfinance Ins�tu�ons Ordinance, 2001. 

The Bank also provides branchless banking services. The Bank's head office and the principal place of business is 

located at Jinnah Super market, F-7 Markaz, Islamabad, Pakistan.

 The credit ra�ng company JCR-VIS assigned the long-term en�ty ra�ng of the Bank at "A" and short term ra�ng at "A-1" 

on 06 May 2020.

2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

 The financial informa�on has been presented in accordance with the requirements of format prescribed by SBP 

Banking Supervision Department (BSD) Circular number 11 dated 30 December 2003.

3 STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as 

applicable in Pakistan. The accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan for financial repor�ng 

comprise of:

 - Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards (IFRS Standards), issued by the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards 

Board (IASB) as no�fied under the Companies Act, 2017;

 - Microfinance Ins�tu�ons Ordinance, 2001 (the MFI Ordinance);

 - Direc�ves issued by the Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and State Bank of Pakistan (SBP); 

and

 - Provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

 Where the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017, the MFI Ordinance and the direc�ves issued by the SECP and SBP 

differ with the requirements of IFRSs, the requirements of the Companies Act, 2017, the Microfinance Ordinance, 

2001, or the requirements of the said direc�ves shall prevail.

 The SBP vide BSD Circular No. 10, dated 26 August 2002 has deferred the applicability of the Interna�onal Accoun�ng 

Standard (IAS) 39, “Financial Instruments: Recogni�on and Measurement” and IAS 40, “Investment Property” for 

banking companies �ll further instruc�ons. Further, the SECP vide its SRO 633 (I)/ 2014, dated 10 July 2014 has deferred 

the applicability of Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standard (IAS) 39, “Financial Instruments: Recogni�on and 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020
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Measurement”, IAS 40, “Investment Property” and Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standard (IFRS) 7, “Financial 

Instruments: Disclosures” for banking companies �ll further instruc�ons. Accordingly, the requirements of these 

standards have not been considered in the prepara�on of these financial statements. However, investments have been 

classified and valued in accordance with the requirements prescribed by SBP through various circulars /regula�ons.

 State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) through its BPRD circular No. 4 of 2019 dated 23 October 2019 has decided that the 

effec�ve date of IFRS 9 implementa�on is 01 January 2021 for banks/DFIs/MFBs. Accordingly, the requirements of this 

standard have not been considered in the prepara�on of these financial statements.

4 BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

4.1 Accoun�ng conven�on

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost conven�on except for available for sale 

investments which are measured at fair value and employee's gratuity which is measured based on actuarial valua�on.

4.2 Func�onal and presenta�on currency

 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees (Rupee or PKR), which is the Bank’s func�onal currency. All 

amounts have been rounded to the nearest Rupee, unless otherwise indicated.

4.3 Use of judgments and es�mates

 In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgments, es�mates and assump�ons that affect the 

applica�on of the Bank’s accoun�ng policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabili�es, income and expenses. 

Actual results may differ from these es�mates.

 Es�mates and underlying assump�ons are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to es�mates are recognised 

prospec�vely.

 Informa�on about assump�ons and es�ma�on uncertain�es or where judgment was exercised in applica�on of 

accoun�ng policies that have a significant risk of resul�ng in a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets 

and liabili�es within the year ended 31 December 2020 is included in the following notes:

 Note 5.12.3 and 17.3.4 – measurement of defined benefit obliga�ons: key actuarial assump�ons;

 Note 5.7 and 29 – recogni�on of deferred tax assets and es�ma�on of income tax provision;

 Notes 5.14 and 22 – recogni�on and measurement of provisions and con�ngencies: key assump�ons about the 

likelihood and magnitude of an ou�low of resources;

 Note 5.5 and 11 useful lives, reassessed values, residual values and deprecia�on method of property and equipment;– 

 Note 5.5.3 and 11.3  – useful lives, residual values and amor�za�on method of intangible assets;

 Note 5.4 and 10.2 – criteria / rates for provision against non-performing advances as per the requirements of the 

pruden�al regula�ons;

 Note 5.3 and 9  – Provision for diminu�on in the value of investment as per the regula�ons issued by SBP; and

 Note 5.6 and 17.2  –  for recogni�on of leased liabili�es and corresponding right of use assets under IFRS-16.
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4.4  Standards, interpreta�ons and amendments to the accoun�ng and repor�ng standards 

 The following Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards (IFRS Standards) as no�fied under the Companies Act, 2017 

and the amendments and interpreta�ons thereto will be effec�ve for accoun�ng periods beginning on or a�er 01 

January 2021:

 - COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16) – the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards Board (the 

Board) has issued amendments to IFRS 16 (the amendments) to provide prac�cal relief for lessees in accoun�ng for 

rent concessions. The amendments are effec�ve for periods beginning on or a�er 1 June 2020, with earlier 

applica�on permi�ed. Under the standard’s previous requirements, lessees assess whether rent concessions are 

lease modifica�ons and, if so, apply the specific guidance on accoun�ng for lease modifica�ons. This generally 

involves remeasuring the lease liability using the revised lease payments and a revised discount rate. In light of the 

effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the fact that many lessees are applying the standard for the first �me in 

their financial statements, the Board has provided an op�onal prac�cal expedient for lessees. Under the prac�cal 

expedient, lessees are not required to assess whether eligible rent concessions are lease modifica�ons, and 

instead are permi�ed to account for them as if they were not lease modifica�ons. Rent concessions are eligible for 

the prac�cal expedient if they occur as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and if all the following 

criteria are met:

 - The change in lease payments results in revised considera�on for the lease that is substan�ally the same as, or less 

than, the considera�on for the lease immediately preceding the change; 

 - Any reduc�on in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

 

 - There is no substan�ve change to the other terms and condi�ons of the lease

 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2 which amended IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 is applicable for 

annual financial periods beginning on or a�er 1 January 2021, with earlier applica�on permi�ed. The 

amendments introduce a prac�cal expedient to account for modifica�ons of financial assets or financial liabili�es 

if a change results directly from IBOR reform and occurs on an ‘economically equivalent’ basis. In these cases, 

changes will be accounted for by upda�ng the effec�ve interest rate. A similar prac�cal expedient will apply under 

IFRS 16 for lessees when accoun�ng for lease modifica�ons required by IBOR reform. The amendments also allow 

a series of exemp�ons from the regular, strict rules around hedge accoun�ng for hedging rela�onships directly 

affected by the interest rate benchmark reforms. The amendments apply retrospec�vely with earlier applica�on 

permi�ed. Hedging rela�onships previously discon�nued solely because of changes resul�ng from the reform will 

be reinstated if certain condi�ons are met. 

 - Onerous Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37) effec�ve for the annual period beginning 

on or a�er 1 January 2022 amends IAS 1 by mainly adding paragraphs which clarifies what comprise the cost of 

fulfilling a contract, Cost of fulfilling a contract is relevant when determining whether a contract is onerous.  An 

en�ty is required to apply the amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obliga�ons at the 

beginning of the annual repor�ng period in which it first applies the amendments (the date of ini�al applica�on). 

Restatement of compara�ve informa�on is not required, instead the amendments require an en�ty to recognize 

the cumula�ve effect of ini�ally applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained 

earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of ini�al applica�on.

  The above amendments are not likely to have an impact on the Bank’s financial statements.

 - Annual Improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020:

  The following annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 are effec�ve for annual repor�ng periods 

beginning on or a�er 1 January 2022.

57 Annual Report 2020 



  IFRS 9 – The amendment clarifies that an en�ty includes only fees paid or received between the en�ty (the 

borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the en�ty or the lender on the other’s behalf, 

when it applies the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial 

liability. 

 

  IAS 41 – The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for en��es to exclude taxa�on cash 

flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present value technique.

 - Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16) effec�ve for the annual 

period beginning on or a�er 1 January 2022. Clarifies that sales proceeds and cost of items produced while 

bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the loca�on and condi�on necessary for it to be capable of 

opera�ng in the manner intended by management e.g. when tes�ng etc., are recognized in profit or loss in 

accordance with applicable Standards. The en�ty measures the cost of those items applying the measurement 

requirements of IAS 2. The standard also removes the requirement of deduc�ng the net sales proceeds from cost 

of tes�ng. An en�ty shall apply those amendments retrospec�vely, but only to items of property, plant and 

equipment that are brought to the loca�on and condi�on necessary for them to be capable of opera�ng in the 

manner intended by management on or a�er the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial 

statements in which the en�ty first applies the amendments. The en�ty shall recognize the cumula�ve effect of 

ini�ally applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other 

component of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period presented. 

 - Amendments to IAS 1 - Presenta�on of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accoun�ng Policies, Changes in Accoun�ng 

Es�mates and Errors (effec�ve for annual periods beginning on or a�er 1 January 2020). The amendments are 

intended to make the defini�on of material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not intended to alter the 

underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. In addi�on, the IASB has also issued guidance on how to make 

materiality judgments when preparing their general purpose financial statements in accordance with IFRS 

Standards.

 - On 29 March 2018, the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards Board (the IASB) has issued a revised Conceptual 

Framework for Financial Repor�ng which is applicable immediately contains changes that will set a new direc�on 

for IFRS in the future.. The Conceptual Framework primarily serves as a tool for the IASB to develop standards and 

to assist the IFRS Interpreta�ons Commi�ee in interpre�ng them. It does not override the requirements of 

individual IFRSs and any inconsistencies with the revised Framework will be subject to the usual due process – this 

means that the overall impact on standard se�ng may take some �me to crystallise. The companies may use the 

Framework as a reference for selec�ng their accoun�ng policies in the absence of specific IFRS requirements. In 

these cases, companies should review those policies and apply the new guidance retrospec�vely as of 1 January 

2020, unless the new guidance contains specific scope outs.

 - Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3) - Reference to the Conceptual Framework, 

issued in May 2020, amended paragraphs 11, 14, 21, 22 and 23 of and added paragraphs 21A, 21B, 21C and 23A to 

IFRS 3 . An en�ty shall apply those amendments to business combina�ons for which the acquisi�on date is on or 

a�er the beginning of the first annual repor�ng period beginning on or a�er 1 January 2022. Earlier applica�on is 

permi�ed if at the same �me or earlier an en�ty also applies all the amendments made by Amendments to 

References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards, issued in March 2018. 

 - Extension of the Temporary Exemp�on from Applying IFRS 9 (Amendments to IFRS 4) - In response to concerns 

regarding temporary accoun�ng mismatches and vola�lity, and increased costs and complexity, the Board issued 

amendments to IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts in 2017. The two op�onal solu�ons raised some considera�ons which 

required detailed analysis and management judgement. On the issue of IFRS 17 (Revised) Insurance Contracts in 

June 2020, the end date for applying the two op�ons under the IFRS 4 amendments was extended to 1 January 

2023, aligned with the effec�ve date of IFRS 17.

 - Classifica�on of liabili�es as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1) effec�ve for the annual period 
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beginning on or a�er 1 January 2022. These amendments in the standards have been added to further clarify when 

a liability is classified as current. The standard also amends the aspect of classifica�on of liability as non-current by 

requiring the assessment of the en�ty’s right at the end of the repor�ng period to defer the se�lement of liability 

for at least twelve months a�er the repor�ng period. An en�ty shall apply those amendments retrospec�vely in 

accordance with IAS 8.

 - Sale or Contribu�on of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 10 and 

IAS 28) – The amendment amends accoun�ng treatment on loss of control of business or assets.  The amendments 

also introduce new accoun�ng for less frequent transac�on that involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain 

retained interests in assets that are not businesses. The effec�ve date for these changes has been deferred 

indefinitely un�l the comple�on of a broader review.

 

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, balances held with State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and Na�onal Bank of 

Pakistan (NBP) and balances held with other banks / Non-Banking Financial Ins�tu�ons (NBFIs) / Microfinance Banks 

(MFBs) and are carried at cost.

5.1 Cash and cash equivalents

 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, balances held with State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and Na�onal Bank of 

Pakistan (NBP) and balances held with other banks / Non-Banking Financial Ins�tu�ons (NBFIs) / Microfinance Banks 

(MFBs) and are carried at cost.

5.2 Sale and repurchase agreements

 Assets sold with a simultaneous commitment to repurchase at a specified future date (repos) con�nue to be recognized 

in the balance sheet and are measured in accordance with the accoun�ng policies for investment securi�es. The 

counter party liability for considera�on received is included in borrowings from financial ins�tu�ons. The difference 

between sale and repurchase price is treated as markup/return/interest expense over the period of the transac�on. 

Assets purchased with a corresponding commitment to resell at a specified future date (reverse repo) are not 

recognized as investment in the balance sheet. Amounts paid under these agreements are included in lending to 

financial ins�tu�ons. The difference between the purchase and resale price is treated as markup/return/interest 

income over the period of the transac�on. 

5.3 Investments

 The investments of the Bank, upon ini�al recogni�on, are classified as held-for-trading, held-to-maturity or available-

for-sale, as appropriate.

 Investments (other than held-for-trading) are ini�ally measured at fair value plus transac�on costs  associated with the 

investments. Held-for-trading investments are ini�ally measured at fair value and transac�on costs are expensed out in 

the profit and loss account.  

 Purchase and sale of investments that require delivery within the �me frame established by regula�on or market 

conven�on is recognised at the trade date, which is the date the Bank commits to purchase or sell the investment.  

 Held for trading

 These represent securi�es acquired with the inten�on to trade by taking advantage of short-term market/ interest rate 

movements. These securi�es are required to be disposed off within 90 days from the date of their acquisi�on. A�er 

ini�al measurement, these are marked to market and surplus/ deficit arising on revalua�on of 'held for trading' 

investments is taken to profit and loss account in accordance with the requirements prescribed by SBP.
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 Held to maturity

 Investments with fixed maturity, where management has both the intent and the ability to hold �ll maturity, are 

classified as held to maturity. Subsequent to ini�al recogni�on at cost, these investments are measured at amor�zed 

cost, less provision for impairment in value, if any, and amor�zed cost is calculated taking into account effec�ve interest 

rate method. Profit on held to maturity investments is recognized on a �me propor�on basis taking into account the 

effec�ve yield on the investments.

 Available for sale

 These are investments which do not fall under the held-for-trading and held-to-maturity categories. A�er ini�al 

measurement, such investments are measured at fair value. The surplus / (deficit) arising on revalua�on is shown in the 

balance sheet below equity which is taken to the profit and loss account when actually realised upon disposal.

 Premium or discount on securi�es classified as available-for-sale and held-to-maturity is amor�sed using effec�ve 

interest method and taken to the profit and loss account.

 

 Provision for impairment in the value of equity securi�es is made a�er considering objec�ve evidence of impairment as 

a result of one or more events that may have an impact on the es�mated future cash flows of these investments. A 

significant or prolonged decline in the value of security is also considered as an objec�ve evidence of impairment. 

Provision for diminu�on in the value of debt securi�es is made as per the Pruden�al Regula�ons. In the event of 

impairment of available for sale securi�es, the cumula�ve loss that had been recognized directly in surplus on 

revalua�on of securi�es on the balance sheet below equity is thereof removed and recognized in the profit and loss 

account.

5.4 Advances

 Advances are stated net of provision for non-performing advances. The outstanding principal and mark-up of the loans 

and advances, payments against which are overdue for 30 days or more are classified as non-performing loans (NPLs). 

The unrealized interest / profit / mark-up / service charges on NPLs is suspended and credited to interest suspense 

account. Further the NPLs are classified into following categories as prescribed in the Regula�ons:

 Other assets especially men�oned

 These are advances, payments against which are overdue for 30 days or more but less than 60 days.

 Substandard

 These are advances, payments against which are overdue for 60 days or more but less than 90 days.

 Doub�ul

 These are advances, payments against which are overdue for 90 days or more but less than 180 days.

 Loss

 These are advances, payments against which are overdue for 180 days or more. 

 In addi�on the Bank maintains a watch list of all accounts overdue for 5-29 days. However, such accounts are not 

treated as non-performing for the purpose of classifica�on/ provisioning.  

 In accordance with the Regula�ons, the Bank maintains specific provision of outstanding principal net of cash 

collaterals and gold (ornaments and bullion) realizable without recourse to a Court of Law at the following rates:
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 Other assets especially men�oned Substandard     Nil

 

 Substandard      25% of outstanding principal net of cash collaterals

 Doub�ul      50% of outstanding principal net of cash collaterals

 Loss        100% of outstanding principal net of cash collaterals

 In addi�on to above, a general provision is made equivalent to 1% (2019: 1%) of the net outstanding balance (advance 

net of specific provisions) in accordance with the requirement of the Regula�ons. The Bank also recognises general 

provisions in addi�on to the above general provisions when the circumstances indicate delinquency in the por�olio.

 General and specific provision is charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which they occur.

 Non-performing advances are wri�en off one month a�er the loan is classified as "Loss". However, the Bank con�nues 

its efforts for recovery of the wri�en off balances.

 Under excep�onal circumstances management reschedules repayment terms for clients who have suffered 

catastrophic events and who appear willing and able to fully repay their loans. Such rescheduling does not have any 

effects on the classifica�on of the loan as per the Pruden�al Regula�ons.

5.5 Opera�ng fixed assets

5.5.1 Property and equipment

 Owned

 These are stated at cost less accumulated deprecia�on and impairment (if any). Cost includes expenditure that are 

directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on of items. Deprecia�on is charged using the straight-line basis over the es�mated 

useful lives of assets. Full month’s deprecia�on is charged in the month of addi�on and no deprecia�on is charged for 

the month in which the disposal is made. The residual value, deprecia�on methods and useful lives are reviewed and 

adjusted (if appropriate) at each balance sheet date. Gains and losses on disposal of assets are determined by 

comparing the sale proceeds with the carrying amount are included in the profit and loss account. Subsequent costs are 

included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,  only when it is probable that 

future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be measured 

reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance is charged to the 

profit and loss account. An asset’s carrying amount is wri�en down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s 

carrying amount is greater than its es�mated recoverable amount.

 Right of use assets

 The Bank recognizes right-of-use assets at the lease commencement date. Right-of-use assets are ini�ally measured at 

cost, which comprises the ini�al amount of lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 

commencement date, plus any ini�al direct costs incurred. Right of use asset is calculated as the ini�al amount of the 

lease liability in terms of rentals for business loca�ons at the lease contract commencement date. 

 The right to use assets is subsequently depreciated using the straight line method from the commencement date to the 

end of the lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Bank by the end of lease term 

or the cost of the right of use asset reflect that the Bank will exercise a purchase op�on. In that case the right of use asset 

will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of 

property, plant equipment. In addi�on, the right of use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and 

adjusted for certain remeasurement of lease liability.
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 The right of use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight line method for a period of lesser of ten years or 

actual lease term. Deprecia�on methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each repor�ng date and 

adjusted if appropriate. 

5.5.2 Capital work-in-progress

 All expenditure connected with specific assets incurred during installa�on and development period are carried under 

capital work in progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when these are available for use. Capital work in 

progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

5.5.3 Intangible assets

 Intangible assets with a definite useful life are stated at cost less accumulated amor�sa�on and impairment (if any). 

These are amor�sed from the month, when these assets are available for use, using the straight-line method, whereby 

the cost of the intangible asset is amor�sed on the basis of the es�mated useful life over which economic benefits are 

expected to flow to the Bank. The residual value, useful life and amor�sa�on method is reviewed and adjusted, if 

appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

5.6 Lease liability 

 At the commencement date of the lease, the Bank recognizes lease liabili�es measured at the present value of lease 

payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed 

payments) less any lease incen�ves receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts 

expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase 

op�on reasonably certain to be exercised by the Bank and payments of penal�es for termina�ng a lease, if the lease 

term reflects the Bank exercising the op�on to terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index 

or a rate are recognized as expense in the period on which the event or condi�on that triggers the payment occurs.

 Short-term leases

 The Bank applies the short-term lease recogni�on exemp�on to its short-term leases of property and equipment (i.e. 

those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase 

op�on). Lease payments on short-term leases are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

5.7 Taxa�on

 Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit and loss account except to the extent 

that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.

5.7.1 Current tax

 Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or refundable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any 

adjustment to the tax payable or refundable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax payable or 

refundable is the best es�mate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to 

income taxes, if any. The charge for current taxa�on is based on taxable income at current rates of taxa�on enacted or 

substan�ally enacted at the repor�ng date, a�er taking into considera�on available tax credits, rebates and tax losses, 

if any. Current tax assets and liabili�es are offset if certain criteria are met.

5.7.2 Deferred tax

 Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabili�es for 

financial repor�ng purposes and the amounts used for taxa�on purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for:
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 - Temporary differences on ini�al recogni�on of assets or liabili�es in a transac�on that is not a business 

combina�on and that affects neither accoun�ng nor taxable profit or loss; 

 - Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the extent that 

the Bank is able to control the �ming of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will 

not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

 - Taxable temporary differences arising on the ini�al recogni�on of goodwill.

 Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deduc�ble temporary differences to 

the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Future taxable 

profits are determined based on business plans for the Bank and the reversal of temporary differences. Deferred tax 

assets are reviewed at each repor�ng date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related 

tax benefit will be realized; such reduc�ons are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves. 

Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each repor�ng date and recognised to the extent that it has become 

probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used.

 Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, 

using tax rates enacted or substan�ally enacted at the repor�ng date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax 

consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Bank expects, at the repor�ng date, to recover or se�le 

the carrying amount of its assets and liabili�es. Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are offset if certain criteria are met.

5.7.3 Group taxa�on

 The Bank is taxed as a one fiscal unit along with the Parent Company and its other wholly owned subsidiaries under 

sec�on 59AA to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Current and deferred income taxes are recognised by each en�ty 

within the Group in their respec�ve profit and loss account, regardless of who has the legal rights or obliga�on for the 

recovery or payment of tax from or to the tax authori�es. However, tax liability / receivable is shown by the Parent 

Company, on submission of annual tax return, who has the legal obliga�on to pay or right of recovery of tax from the 

taxa�on authori�es. Balances between the group en��es on account of group tax is shown as other receivable / liability 

by the respec�ve group en��es.

5.8 Impairment

5.8.1 Non-deriva�ve financial assets

 Financial assets not classified at fair value through profit and loss account are assessed at each repor�ng date to 

determine whether there is objec�ve evidence of impairment.

 Objec�ve evidence that financial assets are impaired includes default or delinquency by a debtor, restructuring of an 

amount due to the Bank on the terms that the Bank would not consider otherwise and indica�on that a debtor will 

enter bankruptcy.

 For financial assets measured at amor�zed cost, the Bank considers evidence of impairment for these assets at both an 

individual asset and a collec�ve level. All significant assets are assessed for impairment individually. Those found not to 

be impaired are then collec�vely assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet individually iden�fied. 

Assets that are not individually significant are collec�vely assessed for impairment. Collec�ve assessment is carried out 

by grouping together assets with similar risk characteris�cs. In assessing collec�ve impairment, the Bank uses historical 

informa�on on the �ming of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, and makes an adjustment if current economic 

and credit condi�ons are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser than suggested by historical trends.

 An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the 

es�mated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effec�ve interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit and 
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loss account and reflected in an allowance account. When the Bank considers that there are no realis�c prospects of 

recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are wri�en off. If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases 

and the decrease can be related objec�vely to an event occurring a�er the impairment was recognised, then the 

previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit and loss account.

5.8.2 Non-financial asset

 At each repor�ng date, the Bank reviews the carrying amount of its non-financial assets (deferred tax assets) to 

determine whether there is any indica�on of impairment. If any such indica�on exists, then the asset’s recoverable 

amount is es�mated.

 For impairment tes�ng, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from 

con�nuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or cash genera�ng units (CGUs).

 The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is 

based on the es�mated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 

current market assessments of the �me value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. An impairment loss is 

recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount.

 Impairment losses are recognised in profit and loss account. These are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the 

assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis. For other assets, an impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s 

carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of deprecia�on or 

amor�za�on, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

5.9 Financial instruments

 Financial assets and liabili�es are recognized when the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instrument. These are derecognized when the Bank ceases to be the party to the contractual provisions of the 

instrument.

 All financial assets and liabili�es are ini�ally measured at cost which is the fair value of the considera�on given and 

received respec�vely. These financial assets and liabili�es are subsequently measured at fair value, amor�zed cost or 

historical cost as the case may be. 

 Other par�cular recogni�on methods adopted by the Bank are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated 

with each item of financial instruments.

 Financial Assets

 Financial assets are cash and balances with SBP and NBP, balances with other banks, investments, advances and other 

receivables. Advances are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate provisions against non-performing 

advances, while other financial assets excluding investments are stated at cost. Investments are recognized as per note 

5.3.  

 Financial Liabili�es

 Financial liabili�es are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangement entered into. Financial 

liabili�es include deposits, borrowings and other liabili�es which are stated at their nominal value. Financial charges 

are accounted for on accrual basis. 

 Any gain or loss on the recogni�on and de-recogni�on of the financial assets and liabili�es is included in the net profit 

and loss for the year in which it arises.
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 Deriva�ve financial instruments

 Deriva�ve financial instruments are ini�ally recognised at fair value on the date on which the deriva�ve contract is 

entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value using valua�on techniques. All deriva�ve financial 

instruments are carried as assets when fair value is posi�ve and liabili�es when fair value is nega�ve. Any change in the 

fair value of deriva�ve financial instruments is taken to the profit and loss account.

5.10 Deposits

 Deposits are ini�ally recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up accrued on deposits, if any is recognised 

separately as part of other liabili�es and is charged to the profit and loss account over the period.

5.11 Subordinated debt

 Subordinated loans are ini�ally recorded at the amount of proceeds received. Mark-up accrued on subordinated loans 

is recognised as part of other liabili�es and is charged to the profit and loss account over the period on an accrual basis.

5.12 Employee benefits

5.12.1 Short-term employee benefits

 Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount 

expected to be paid if the Bank has a present legal or construc�ve obliga�on to pay this amount as a result of past 

service provided by the employee and the obliga�on can be es�mated reliably.

5.12.2 Defined contribu�on plan – provident fund

 The Bank operates a defined contribu�on provident fund scheme for permanent employees. Contribu�ons to the fund 

are made monthly by the Bank and employees at an agreed rate of salary (8% of the basic salary of the employee), the 

fund is managed by its Board of Trustees. The contribu�on of Bank is charged to profit and loss account.

5.12.3 Staff re�rement benefit - gratuity

 The Bank operates defined benefit plan comprising an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all eligible employees 

comple�ng the minimum qualifying period of service (three years) as specified by the scheme. 

 The Bank’s net liability in respect of this defined benefit plan is calculated by es�ma�ng the amount of future benefit 

that employees have earned in the current and prior periods and discoun�ng that amount.

 The calcula�on of defined benefit liability is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit 

method (PUC). 

 Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognised 

immediately in other comprehensive income. The Bank determines the net interest expense on the net defined benefit 

liability for the year by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit liability at the beginning of the 

annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit 

liability during the year as a result of contribu�ons and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses 

related to defined benefit plan are recognised in profit and loss account.

 When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resul�ng change in benefit that relates to past 

service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in profit and loss account. The Bank recognises 

gains and losses on the se�lement of a defined benefit plan when the se�lement occurs.
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5.13 Reserves

5.13.1 Statutory reserve

 In compliance with the requirements of the Regula�on R-4, the Bank maintains statutory reserve to which an 

appropria�on equivalent to 20% of the profit a�er tax is made �ll such �me the reserve fund equals the paid up capital 

of the Bank. However, therea�er, the contribu�on is reduced to 5% of the profit a�er tax.

5.13.2 Depositors' protec�on fund

 In compliance with the requirements of sec�on 19 of the Microfinance Ins�tu�ons Ordinance 2001, the Bank 

contributes 5% of annual profit a�er tax to the Depositor’s Protec�on Fund for the purpose of providing security or 

guarantee to the persons deposi�ng money in the Bank.

5.13.3 Cash reserve

 In compliance with the requirements of the Regula�on R-3A, the Bank maintains a cash reserve equivalent to not less 

than 5% of its deposits (including demand deposits and �me deposits with tenure of less than 1 year) in a current 

account opened with the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) or its agent.

5.13.4 Statutory liquidity requirement

 In compliance with the requirements of the Regula�on R-3B, the Bank maintains liquidity equivalent to at least 10% of 

its total demand liabili�es and �me liabili�es with tenure of less than one year  in the form of liquid assets i.e. cash, gold, 

unencumbered treasury bills, Pakistan Investment Bonds and Government of Pakistan sukuk bonds. Treasury bills and 

Pakistan Investment Bonds held under depositor's protec�on fund are excluded for the purposes of determining 

liquidity.

5.14 Provisions

 A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Bank has a legal or construc�ve obliga�on as a result of a past 

event, and it is probable that an ou�low of economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on and a reliable 

es�mate can be made of the amount of obliga�on. Provisions are determined by discoun�ng the expected future cash 

flows at a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of �me value of money and risk specific to the 

liability. The unwinding of discount is recognised as interest expense.

5.15 Revenue recogni�on

5.15.1 Revenue from contracts with customers

 Revenue is measured based on the considera�on specified in a contract with customer and excludes amounts collected 

on behalf of third par�es.

 Revenue is recognized when the Bank sa�sfies the performance obliga�ons by transferring a promised good or service 

to a customer. Goods or services are transferred when the customer obtains control of those assets. Revenue from all 

revenue streams is recognized when the services are provided to the customer.

 The stand-alone selling prices are determined based on the observable price at which the Bank sells the services on a 

standalone basis.

 The nature and �ming of sa�sfac�on of performance obliga�ons in contracts with customers, including significant 

payment terms, and the related revenue recogni�on policies are as follows:
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 Mark-up / income on advances

 Mark-up / income / return / service charge on advances is recognized on accrual / �me propor�on basis using effec�ve 

interest rate method at the Bank's prevailing interest rates for the respec�ve loan products. Mark-up/ income on 

advances is collected with loan instalments. Due but unpaid service charges/ income are accrued on overdue advances 

for period up to 30 days. A�er 30 days, overdue advances are classified as non-performing and recogni�on of unpaid 

service charges / income ceases. Further accrued mark-up on non-performing advances are reversed and credited to 

suspense account. Subsequently, mark-up recoverable on non-performing advances is recognized on a receipt basis in 

accordance with the requirements of the Regula�ons. Applica�on processing fee is recognized as income when service 

is performed.

 Income from investment

 Mark-up / return on investments is recognized on �me propor�on basis using effec�ve interest method. Where debt 

securi�es are purchased at premium or discount, the related premiums or discounts are amor�zed through the profit 

and loss account over the remaining period of maturity of said investment. Gain or loss on sale of securi�es is 

accounted for in the period in which the sale occurs.

 Fee, commission and brokerage income

 Fee, commission and brokerage income are recognised as services are performed.

 Income on inter bank deposits

 Income from interbank deposits in saving accounts are recognized in the profit and loss account using the effec�ve 

interest  method.

5.16 Mark-up bearing borrowings

 Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognized ini�ally at cost being the fair value of considera�on received, less 

a�ributable transac�on costs. Subsequent to ini�al recogni�on mark-up bearing borrowings are stated at original cost 

less subsequent repayments.

5.17 Borrowing costs

 Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except where such costs relate to 

the acquisi�on, construc�on or produc�on of a qualifying asset in which case such costs are capitalized as part of the 

cost of that asset.

5.18 Off-se�ng

 Financial assets and financial liabili�es and tax assets and tax liabili�es are only off-set and the net amount is reported in 

the financial statements when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the Bank intends 

either to se�le on net basis or to realize the assets and to se�le the liabili�es simultaneously. Income and expense items 

of such assets and liabili�es are also off-set and the net amount is reported in the financial statements.

5.19 Foreign currency transac�ons and transla�on

 Transac�ons in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupee at exchange rate on the date of transac�on. All 

monetary assets and liabili�es in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupee at the rate of exchange 

approxima�ng those ruling at the balance sheet date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resul�ng from the se�lement 

of such transac�ons and from the transla�on at the year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabili�es 

denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in profit and loss account.
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5.20 Earnings per share

 The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss 

a�ributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 

during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjus�ng the profit or loss a�ributable to ordinary shareholders and the 

weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for the effects of all dilu�ve poten�al ordinary 

shares.

5.21 Share capital and dividend

 Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognised at their face value. Dividend distribu�on to the shareholders is 

recognised as liability in the period in which it is declared. 

5.22 Fair value measurement

 'Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transac�on 

between market par�cipants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most advantageous 

market to which the Bank has access at that date. The fair value of a liability reflects its non-performance risk.

 A number of the Bank’s accoun�ng policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial 

and non-financial assets and liabili�es.

 When one is available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted price in an ac�ve market for 

that instrument. A market is regarded as ac�ve if transac�ons for the asset or liability take place with sufficient 

frequency and volume to provide pricing informa�on on an ongoing basis.

 If there is no quoted price in an ac�ve market, then the Bank uses valua�on techniques that maximize the use of 

relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valua�on technique incorporates 

all of the factors that market par�cipants would take into account in pricing a transac�on.

 If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Bank measures assets and long 

posi�ons at a bid price and liabili�es and short posi�ons at an ask price.

 The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument on ini�al recogni�on is normally the transac�on price – i.e. 

the fair value of the considera�on given or received. If the Bank determines that the fair value on ini�al recogni�on 

differs from the transac�on price and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an ac�ve market for an 

iden�cal asset or liability nor based on a valua�on technique for which any unobservable inputs are judged to be 

insignificant in rela�on to the measurement, then the financial instrument is ini�ally measured at fair value, adjusted to 

defer the difference between the fair value on ini�al recogni�on and the transac�on price. Subsequently, that 

difference is recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when 

the valua�on is wholly supported by observable market data or the transac�on is closed out.
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2020 2019

6 CASH AND BALANCES WITH SBP AND NBP Note Rupees Rupees

Cash in hand - Local currency            920,790,506 
              

Local currency current accounts

Balances with State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) 6.1         2,238,550,139 
              Balances with Na�onal Bank of Pakistan (NBP)                   776,186 
                              3,160,116,831 

2020 2019

7 BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS/ NBFIs/ MFBs Note Rupees Rupees

In Pakistan - Local currency

Current accounts 7.1              11,702,453 

                Deposit accounts 7.2         1,896,507,295 

           Term deposit receipts -

                   1,908,209,748 

2020 2019

8 LENDING TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS Note Rupees Rupees

Repurchase agreement Lending (Reverse repo)

              

              

                      

                

           

           

7.1 This includes Rs. 10,200,000 (2019: Rs. 9,600,000) held as deposit under lien in respect of standby le�er of guarantee issued to 

China Union Pay Interna�onal.

7.2 Deposit accounts carried interest at rates ranging from 5.50% to 14.5% (2019: 5.25% to 14.19%) per annum.

                      450,000,000            -

8.1 This represent reverse repo carrying interest rate of 6.10% per annum with the maturity date of 04 Jan 2021 (2019: Nil).

8.1.1 Securi�es held as collateral against lending to financial ins�tu�ons reverse repo are market treasury bills amoun�ng to Rs. 450 

million.

            618,822,600 

        1,097,601,624 

                    781,186 

        1,717,205,410 

              10,341,102 

            909,485,364 

        2,100,000,000 

        3,019,826,466 

9 INVESTMENTS - NET OF PROVISIONS

Market Treasury Bills (T-Bills)

Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs)

Unrealised loss on revalua�on of investments

Held to maturity

Term deposit receipts

Less: Provision for diminu�on in value of investments

Available for sale

2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees

10,352,699,370 

     7,601,060,234 

739,734 

   17,954,499,338 

6,120,000,000 

   24,074,499,338 

   24,074,499,338 

              
9.1

9.2

9.4

9.3

              

              
6,979,866,348 

   

          (10,327,680)

       6,969,538,668

 

   

       6,969,538,668 

       6,969,538,668 

Federal Government Securi�es

            

           

              

                  

                   

            

         

              
            

           

              
         

-   -   

-   

-   

9.1 This represents market treasury bills with maturi�es ranging from 42 to 84 days (2019: 16 to 310 days) carrying interest at the 

rate ranging from 7.10% to 7.14% (2019: 13.10% to 13.42%) per annum.
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9.4 Revalua�on of available for sale securi�es - net of deferred tax

 In accordance with Regula�on R-11, available for sale securi�es have been valued at market value and the resul�ng surplus 
is kept in a separate account �tled 'surplus / (deficit) on revalua�on of assets' through statement of comprehensive 
income.

9.2 This represents Pakistan Investment Bonds carrying interest at the rate ranging from 8.12% to 9.06% (2019: Nil) per annum 

payable on semi annualy basis maturing within two to four years.

9.3 Term Deposit Receipts (TDR) carries markup at rate ranging between 8.50% to 12% (2019: 14.50%) per annum with maturi�es 

upto 1 year.

Market Treasury Bills (T-Bills)

Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs)

Related deferred tax effect

2020 2019

Rupees Rupees

648,500 

91,234 

739,734 

              (110,960)

               628,774 

              

                            

 
(10,327,680)

   

             1,549,152 

           (8,778,528)

            

           

              

                  

                                      

                        

         
 

-

-   

              
            

           
         

10 ADVANCES - NET OF PROVISIONS

Micro credit

Secured

Unsecured

Less: Provision held

Specific

General

Advances - net of provisions

Loan type

2020

Note
 Number  Rupees 

86,949

259,309

346,258 

                   14,648,994,902 

  16,670,366,873 

  31,319,361,775 

      

                   

                   

516                     (7,247,107)

  (1,305,815,769)

  (1,313,062,876)

  30,006,298,899 

          

10.1

10.3

        

        

    

2019

 Number  Rupees 

                           5,660,089,977

16,222,216,578

21,882,306,555 

      

                     

                     

                     (353,264,391)

         (154,962,899)

         (508,227,290)

      21,374,079,265 

          

        

        

    

51,414 

              262,650 

              314,064 

15,141

10.1 General provision is maintained at the rate of 1% (2019: 1%) of unsecured micro credit balance net of specific provision 

amoun�ng to Rs. 7.247 million (2019: Rs. 353.264 million), risk coverage by SBP under credit guarantee scheme for small and 

rural enterprises (CGS) is Rs. Nil (2019: Rs. 50 million) and credit guarantee for small and marginalized farmers (CGSMF) 

amoun�ng Rs. 520 million (2019: Rs. 322 million), respec�vely, in accordance with the Regula�ons.

 In view of the COVID 19, management expect that certain degree of customers would be impacted, however, it is difficult to 

es�mate poten�al effect on advances por�olio with any degree of certainty. However, an addi�onal general provision of Rs. 

1,144 million, as of 31 December 2020 is recognized in the financial statements based on management's assessment of asset 

quality and credit risk.

10.2 Par�culars of non-performing advances

Category of classifica�on Provision 

rate

 Amount 

outstanding 

 Provision       

required 
 Provision           

held 

Other Assets Especially Men�oned (OAEM) -

            

      15,371,672 

        9,018,144 

        8,464,804 

        3,016,744 

      35,871,364 

          

- -

 Amount 
outstanding 

 Provision       
required 

 Provision           
held                                                    

- -

Sub-standard 25%

          

2,022,961 

        3,174,302 

        2,049,844 

        7,247,107 

             

2,022,961

3,174,302

2,049,844

7,247,107

              

Doub�ul 50%

                               

Loss 100%
                               

Total                              

2020

Rupees

2019

Rupees

43,020,028 

     123,008,806 

     187,235,557 

     353,264,391 

43,020,028 

    123,008,806 

    187,235,557 

    353,264,391 

291,695,211 

    172,226,413 

    246,460,972 

    187,452,157 

    897,834,753 
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     205,405,503 

     838,456,236 

   (535,634,449)

     508,227,290 

     133,146,543 

       21,816,356 

     154,962,899 

          72,258,960 

        816,639,880 

       (535,634,449)

        353,264,391 

           

         

10.3 Par�culars of provisions against non-performing advances

Specific General Total

Opening balance 353,264,391 

        429,013,209 

       (775,030,493)

            7,247,107 

      154,962,899

    1,150,852,870 

508,227,290

1,579,866,079

(775,030,493)

Charge for the year 

Advances wri�en off -

Reversals - - -

Closing balance    1,305,815,769    1,313,062,876 

2020

Rupees

           

         

Specific General Total

-

- - -

2019

Rupees

10.3.1
10.4

Note

10.3.1  This includes Rs. 1.84 million (2019: Rs. 28.7 million) directly charged to profit and loss account.

2020

Note Rupees10.4 Par�culars of advances wri�en off

Against provision (773,188,812)

(1,841,681)

(775,030,493)

Directly charged to profit and loss account

2019

Rupees

    (506,918,213)

(28,716,236)

(535,634,449)

10.5 The coronavirus (COVID-19) has been evolving as a strain to the global economy including that of Pakistan. Therefore, to 
dampen the adverse effects of COVID-19 and to enable the Microfinance Banks con�nue to fulfill their role in funding the 
real economy. In order to facilitate Microfinance Banks (“MFBs”) due to COVID-19, SBP issued AC&MFD Circular Le�er No. 
1 of 2020 dated 26 March 2020 regarding “Regulatory relief to dampen the effects of COVID-19”. This circular allowed 
certain relaxa�ons to MFBs. In accordance with this circular, MFBs, upon wri�en request from borrower received before 
30 June 2020, could defer repayment of principal for one year provided borrower con�nues to service the markup amount 
in accordance with agreed terms. The said circular also clarified that the above-men�oned deferment does not affect the 
credit history of the borrower and is not to be reported as restructuring in ECIB. Further, the financing facili�es of such 
borrowers, who are unable to service the mark-up amount or need deferment exceeding one year, may be rescheduled / 
restructured upon their request. If the rescheduling / restructuring is done within 90 days of the loans being overdue, such 
facili�es could con�nue to be treated as regular and reported in the ECIB accordingly. MFBs could not classify as NPL the 
financing facili�es of such borrowers who had requested for deferment unless the payment obliga�ons were past due by 
90 days. The aforesaid treatment was available for loans which were regular on / or a�er 15 February 2020 and became 
non-performing subsequently.

 In con�nua�on to the aforemen�oned le�er, the SBP vide its le�er AC&MFD Circular Le�er No. 4 of 2020 dated 07 July 
2020 further extended the date of submission of rescheduling request to 30 September 2020 provided borrower con�nue 
to service the mark-up amount as per agreed terms and condi�ons. In order to enable MFBs in extending further relief 
measures to the affected borrowers, on 10 August 2020, SBP vide its le�er AC&MFD Circular Le�er No. 7 of 2020 wherein 
the treatment prescribed vide aforesaid circular le�ers was now available for loans which were regular on 31 December 
2019 (previously this was 15 February 2020). Each NPL category was extended by 2 months for borrowers who could not 
avail relief under the scheme. Accordingly, pursuant to the regulatory relief given by SBP to dampen the effects of COVID-
19, the Bank has restructured / deferred 142,181 loans amoun�ng to Rs. 8,499 million (2019: Nil). 

11 OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

Capital work-in-progress 11.1 75,560,939 

  1,435,956,474 

     201,790,196 

  1,204,105,972 

  2,917,413,581 

Property and equipment 11.2

Intangible assets 11.3

Right of use asset (ROU)

2020

Rupees

2019

Rupees

11.4

11.1.1 This represents advance given for so�ware and property and equipment.

67,245,962 

  1,471,195,603 

     136,738,568 

  1,429,341,831 

  3,104,521,964 

11.1 Capital work-in-progress

11.1.1          27,926,998

47,633,941

75,560,939 

Breakup of capital work in progress at the repor�ng date is as follows:

Advances to suppliers / contractors

Office improvements

       29,663,568 

       37,582,394 

       67,245,962 
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Leased

Vehicle       20,190,312 --        7,923,098        8,949,956 - 20.00%

Owned
Furniture and fixture 137,162,430 

   140,503,548 
   306,699,356 
     27,153,042 
   280,045,330 
   917,926,422 

- - - 10.00%
33.33%
20.00%
20.00%
10.00%

Computer equipments        1,185,875 
Electrical equipment 
Vehicles - -
Office improvement - -

     10,135,831 
                                                                      
                                                       

Rupees

     26,362,716 

51,196,754 
      60,939,837 
    798,659,149 
        4,444,698 
    174,073,868 
 1,109,504,618 

-

188,359,184 
             200,257,510 
          1,105,358,505 
               31,597,740 
             454,119,198 
          1,979,692,137 

       1,026,858 

25,072,232 
   107,282,294 
   106,812,632 
     17,519,373 
     64,626,411 
   322,339,800 

16,727,155 
     33,211,580 
   103,118,627 
       4,006,348 
     31,305,757 
   196,292,565 

       1,185,875 

-

41,799,387 
   139,307,999 
   209,931,259 
     21,525,721 
     95,932,168 
   508,496,534 

146,559,797 
                    60,949,511 
                  895,427,246 
                    10,072,019 
                  358,187,030 
               1,471,195,603 

-

Owned
Furniture and fixture 188,359,184

200,257,510
1,105,358,505

31,597,740
454,119,198

1,979,692,137

10.00%
33.33%
20.00%
20.00%
10.00%

Computer equipments
Electrical equipment 
Vehicles -
Office improvement                                                                       

                                                       

17,413,324
104,982,182
202,536,886

34,560,614
359,493,006

-

78,926,692   
(113,579,269)

205,768,045
383,778,928

1,194,316,122
31,597,740

488,235,042
2,303,695,877 

41,799,387
139,307,999
209,931,259

21,525,721
95,932,168

508,496,534

(2,566)
(387,456)

(185,321)
(575,343)

62,626,997      
214,761,095
423,636,719

26,030,433
140,684,159
867,739,403 

11.2 Property and equipment       
                                            

Rupees

2020

Cost Deprecia�on
Book value at 31 

December 2020

Rates of 
deprecia�on %

(per annum)
At 01 January 

2020
Addi�ons Disposals

At 31 December 
2020

At 01 January 
2020

 Charge for the 
year 

At 31 December 
2020

Disposals /
Transfers

11.2.1  Cost of fully depreciated property and equipment that are s�ll in use is Rs. 224,808,337 (2019: Rs. 198,483,015).

-

(4,463)
(387,456)

(444,770)
(836,689)     (34,652,577)

-
-

-

Transfers

20,830,176
75,840,552

213,705,460
4,504,712

44,937,312
359,818,212

-

-

143,141,048
169,017,833
770,679,403

5,567,307
347,550,883

1,435,956,474

                                            
2019

Cost Deprecia�on
Book value at 31 

December 2019

Rates of 
deprecia�on %

(per annum)
At 01 January 

2019
Addi�ons Disposals

At 31 December 
2019

At 01 January 
2019

 Charge for the 
year 

At 31 December 
2019

Disposals /
Transfers

Transfers

     46,553,028 

       1,185,875      46,553,028 

-
-         

-

-

11.3 Intangible assets

Note

217,484,528 

            12,394,739 

                    78,378 

          229,957,645 

           

            66,046,269 

                                     

            35,647,218 

             

       201,790,196 10.00%

Licenses

             

-

                                           

20.00%

Mail server

                    

- -

                         

- 33.33%

                                                             Rupees

2020

Cost Amor�za�on
Book value at 31 

December 2020

 
 

Rates of 
amor�za�on
(per annum)

At 01 January 
2020

Addi�ons

                         

                         At 31 December 
2020

Computer so�wares

%

318,183,374

12,394,739

78,378

330,656,491 

80,745,960             

12,394,739                     

78,378 

            

93,219,077 

116,393,178

12,394,739

78,378

       

128,866,295 

-

Transfers

-

-

                    At 01 January 
2020

Addi�ons                          At 31 December 
2020

Transfers

-

-

-

-

Note

165,878,303 

            12,394,739 

                    78,378

 

          178,351,420 

           

            51,606,225 

                                     

            23,468,075 

             

          136,738,568 10.00%

Licenses

             

-

                             

                  399,990 

              

20.00%

Mail server

                    

- -

                         

- 33.33%

           

            51,606,225 

                                     

            23,868,065 

             

          136,738,568 

Rupees

2019

Cost Amor�za�on
Book value at 31 

December 2019

 
 

Rates of 
amor�za�on
(per annum)

At 01 January 
2019

Addi�ons

                         

                         At 31 December 
2019

Computer so�wares

%

217,484,528 

            12,394,739 

                    78,378 

          229,957,645 

57,277,885 

            11,994,749 

                    78,378 

            69,351,012 

80,745,960 

            12,394,739 

                    78,378 

            93,219,077 

-

Transfers

-

-

-

-

                    At 01 January 
2019

Addi�ons                          At 31 December 
2019

Transfers

-

-

-

-

            66,046,269              34,652,577 

             34,652,577 

-

            35,647,218        201,790,196 

11.3.1  This includes opera�ng system and microso� office licenses. The average remaining life of the computer so�wares is 04 
years (2019: 05 years).

11.4 Right of use asset
2020 2019

Note Rupees Rupees

1,429,341,831 

                                                 -   

                             1,429,341,831 

   

      

        

                    

                  

10.4.1

27

            

        
          

   
   

 

Present value of the future lease payments

Pre-payments reclassified as right of use assets

1,422,786,367

167,698,913

  1,590,485,280 

  1,590,485,280 

37,603,072

-

- 

    (69,653,520)

  (129,093,001)

  1,429,341,831 

                             1,429,341,831 

                                                 -   

                                  50,023,228 

                                (10,283,591)

                                                 -   

                              (264,975,496)

                             1,204,105,972 

Balance at start of the year

Transfer from property and equipment

Addi�ons

Disposals 

Modifica�on of lease 

Deprecia�on 

Balance at end of the year
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2020 2019

12 OTHER ASSETS Note Rupees Rupees

6,724,115,659 

                                208,483,161 

                                                 -   

                                181,726,809 

                                  18,285,049 

                                  92,403,524 

                                476,990,966 

                                  75,370,102 

                                    7,849,721 

                                    1,391,950 

                                  10,630,409 

                             7,797,247,350 

   

12.1

12.2

12.3

17.3

      

        

          

        

      

        

   

Income / mark-up accrued

Advances, deposits and other prepayments

Advance tax - net

Receivable from 1-Link 

Inventory of ATM cards and sta�onery

Advance to employees

Receivable from SBP against crop and livestock insurance

Insurance claims receivable

Receivable from staff re�rement benefit - gratuity

Recievable from defined contribu�on plan - provident fund

Others

3,016,072,476 

       152,669,104 

        19,183,051 

                     -   

          8,472,151 

        38,280,632 

       497,710,786 

        78,298,383 

                     -   

                     -   

        17,990,872 

    3,828,677,455 

11.4.1 During the year, the Bank sold leased vehicles to various employees with book value in excess of Rs. 500,000 with original 
cost amoun�ng to Rs. 14,670,364 and accumulated deprecia�on amoun�ng to Rs. 4,368,773 for Rs. 10,376,878 resul�ng 
in gain of Rs. 93,287 as per policy.

12.1 This is net of markup suspended amoun�ng to Rs. 769 million (2019: Rs. 634 million) on non-performing loans of the Bank.

12.2 These represent loans to staff and execu�ves of the Bank for a maximum period of 60 months. These are secured against 
the re�rement benefits of employees.

12.3 This represents amount receivable from SBP in respect of insurance premium paid by the Bank for livestock and crop loans 
under AC&MFD circular no. 01 of 2013 dated 01 November 2013.

2020 2019

13 DEFERRED TAX ASSET Rupees Rupees

Deductable temporary differences arising in respect of 

Provision against advances

Deficit on revalua�on of available for sale securi�es

Remeasurement of employees' re�rement benefits

Lease finance facili�es

       

         

         

       

Taxable temporary differences arising in respect of 

Accelerated tax deprecia�on / amor�za�on allowance

Gain on revalua�on of available for sale securi�es

Treasury bills
       

        

147,385,914

1,549,152

3,259,061

34,200,832

186,394,959 

       

         

         

       

      

380,788,234 

                                              -   

                                       253,586 

                                  50,994,492 

                                432,036,312 

(24,254,668)

                                     (110,960)

                                  (8,054,086)

                                399,616,598 

       (97,299,842)

-

(12,740,588)

76,354,529
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 Profit and loss  Other          

comprehensive 

income 

2020

Taxable temporary differences

Opera�ng fixed assets                                     -            

Deduc�ble temporary differences

Provision for advances            -                                 

Employee re�rement benei� - gratuity                                          -                           

Surplus / (deficit) on revalua�on of assets                                            -                                      

Leases                                                -                

                                        

                                         

 Net balance at 01 

January 2020

Recognised in  Net balance at 31 

December 2020

 Rupees 

 

147,385,914

3,259,061

1,549,152

34,200,832

186,394,959

380,788,234

253,586

(110,960)

50,994,492

431,925,352

(3,005,475)
(1,660,112)

(4,665,587)

76,354,529 399,616,598

Treasury Bills                          -   

        73,045,174 
          4,686,502 

(24,254,668)
(8,054,086)

 Profit and loss  Other          

comprehensive 

income 

2019

Taxable temporary differences

Opera�ng fixed assets                                     -            

Deduc�ble temporary differences

Provision for advances            -                                 

Employee re�rement benei� - gratuity                                          -                           

Surplus / (deficit) on revalua�on of assets                                            -                                      

Leases                                                -                

                                         

                                          

 Net balance at 01 

January 2019 

Recognised in  Net balance at 31 

December 2019 

 Rupees 

 

55,459,486

2,012,293

10,800

5,357,705

62,840,284

        91,926,428 147,385,914

3,259,061

1,549,152

34,200,832

186,394,959

1,246,768

1,538,352
        28,843,127 

120,769,555 2,785,120

41,654,400 31,915,009 2,785,120 76,354,529

(21,185,884)
Treasury Bills                          -                            -   

(76,113,958)

(12,740,588)

(97,299,842)

(12,740,588)

(97,299,842)
(12,740,588)

      233,402,320 

        16,793,660 

250,195,980

327,927,656 (4,665,587)

14 DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

Fixed deposits
Saving deposits
Current deposits

2,282

14,785

1,461,867

1,478,934

            26,357,673,331

16,802,040,082

2,944,927,440

46,104,640,853

                

                           

                     

                       

2020

Rupees

Amount
Rupees

No. of 
Accounts

Amount No. of 
Accounts

2019

14,836,423,300 

   6,071,321,337 

   2,382,514,834 

 23,290,259,471 

2,678 

       12,652 

     824,179 

     839,509 

14.1 Par�culars of deposits by ownership

Individual depositors

Ins�tu�onal depositors

Corpora�on/ firms etc.

Banks / financial ins�tu�ons

Total

1,478,758 

                                   105

71

1,478,934 

         19,448,644,288 

11,988,551,046

14,667,445,519

46,104,640,853 

                

                                       

                                            

                       

    

    

    

  

 

 

 

 

10,002,151,272 

   7,125,705,811 

   6,162,402,388 

 23,290,259,471 

     839,202 

            219 

              88 

     839,509 
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14.2

2020 201915 BORROWINGS
Rupees Rupees

Borrowings from Banks / Financial Ins�tu�ons in Pakistan:

Secured

15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

15.5

15.6

15.7

15.8

15.9

15.10

249,999,998 

                                500,000,000 

                             2,666,666,667 

                                500,000,000 

                                666,665,334 

                                  50,000,000 

                             1,500,000,000 

                             6,154,540,000 

                                500,000,000 

                                486,318,643 

                           13,274,190,642 

            

            

                

       

                     

   

   

     

   

   
 

This includes deposits amoun�ng to Rs. 5,572 million (2019: Rs. 3,605 million) from related par�es.

Note

Allied Bank Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

Allied Bank Limited - II

Na�onal bank of Pakistan - Running Finance 

Faysal Bank Limited - II

Bank of Punjab

State Bank of Pakistan 

Repo Borrowing 

Loan ABL-RF

Bank Al Falah (Cash Management)

  6,733,331,333 

750,000,000   

833,333,333 

2,000,000,000 

500,000,000 

999,998,000 

150,000,000 

1,500,000,000 

-

-

-

15.1 This represents outstanding balance of term finance facility under syndicate financing through Allied Bank Limited of 
Rs. 1,500 million carrying markup of 6-months KIBOR plus 1.10% (2019: 6-month KIBOR plus 1.10%) per annum payable 
semi-annually. This facility is secured against first pari passu charge over all present and future assets of the Bank with 
25% margin. This loan is repayable in 6 equal semi-annual instalments of Rs. 250 million each. Repayments have started 
from September 2018. 

15.2 This represent term finance loan of Rs. 1 billion carrying markup of 6-months KIBOR plus 1% (2019: 6-Months KIBOR 
plus 1%) per annum payable semi-annually. The loan is secured against  first pari passu charge on book debts, advances 
and receivable of  the Bank with 25% margin and Microfinance  Credit  Guarantee Facility  from State Bank of Pakistan 
at 25%. This loan is repayable in 6 equal semi-annual instalments of Rs. 166.67 million each. Repayments have started 
from August 2019.

15.3 This represents term finance facility under syndicate financing through Allied Bank Limited of Rs. 4 billion carrying 
markup of 6-months  KIBOR plus 0.95% (2019: 6-Months KIBOR plus 0.95%) per annum payable semi-annually in 
arrears. This is secured against first pari passu charge over all present and future assets excluding land and building of 
the Bank but not limited to advances and investments beyond CRR and SLR requirements of the Bank with 25% margin. 
Disbursement was ini�ally made  against a ranking charge which was upgraded to 1st pari pasu with in 120 days of first 
disbursement. This loan is repayable in 06 equal semi-annual instalments with the first principal repayment falling due 
on eighteenth (18th) month from the first disbursement date. The loan was drawn on 31 December 2018.

15.4 This represents u�lized amount of running finance facility through Na�onal Bank of Pakistan Limited of Rs. 500 million 
carrying markup of 3-months KIBOR plus 0.75% per annum (2019: 3-Months KIBOR plus 0.75% per annum). This is 
secured against first pari passu charge on all current and future book debts, advances and receivable of the Bank. The 
ini�al disbursement was made against ranking charge which was upgraded to first pari passu charge within 120 days 
from date of disbursement. Markup is repayable on quarterly basis.

15.5 This represent term finance loan of Rs. 1 Billion carrying markup of 6-months KIBOR plus 0.75% per annum (2019: 6-
Months KIBOR plus 0.75% per annum). This is secured against first pari passu charge on book debts, advances and 
receivables of the Bank for Rs. 1,333 million (25% margin). Ini�al disbursement on ranking charge was upgraded to first 
pari passu from 21 December 2018. This loan is repayable in 6 semi-annual instalments of Rs. 166.66 million each a�er 
grace period of 01 year with the no�onal principle of Rs. 1,000 within first two semi-annual mark-up payments. 

15.6 This represents u�lised amount of term finance loan of Rs. 200 million carrying markup of 6-months KIBOR plus 0.85% 
per annum (2019: 6-months KIBOR plus 0.85%). This is secured against first pari passu charge on book debts, advances 
and receivables of the Bank for Rs. 266.67 million (25% margin). This loan is repayable in 4 semi-annual instalments of 
Rs. 50 million each a�er grace period of 06 months. The loan was disbursed on 12 March 2019.
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15.7 This represent term finance loan of Rs. 1,500 million carrying markup of 6-months KIBOR minus 100 bps (2019: 6 
Months KIBOR minus 100 bps) for the tenor of five years. Markup amount is payable on every half year end i.e 30 June 
and 31 Decemeber, while payment of principle will be made in the last four quarters of the loan period or in bullet form. 
The loan is provided against the following target set by the SBP:

 - the loan should be disbursed to 60% female borrowers
 - the Bank should disburse 25,000 loans; and
 - all loans disbursed should meet the E&S guidline issued by SBP.

 During the year, the Bank disbursed 28,983 loans amoun�ng to Rs. 2.77 billion out of which 20,123 loans amoun�ng to 
Rs. 1.64 billion were disbursed to female borrower as per the E&S guidline issued by SBP.

15.8 This represent Repo Borrowing from:
 Muslim Commercial Bank at the rate of 7.10% amoun�ng to Rs. 986.6 million with maturity date of 04 January 2021. 
 Silk Bank Limited at the rate of 7.65% amoun�ng to Rs. 1.97 billion with maturity date of 04 January 2021.
 Na�onal Bank of Pakistan at the rate of  7.10% amoun�ng to Rs. 500 million with maturity date of 04 January 2021. 
 Allied Bank Limited at the rate of  7.10% amoun�ng to Rs. 1 billion with maturity date of 04 January 2021. 
 JS Bank Limited at the rate of 7.15% amoun�ng to Rs. 500 million with maturity date of 04 January 2021. 
 Bank of Punjab at the rate of 7.25% amoun�ng to  Rs. 1.2 billion with maturity date of 04 January 2021.

15.9 This represent running finance of Rs. 500 million at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 0.85% per annum to be paid on 
quarterly basis with the tenor of 12 months. This running finance facility is obtained to meet the short term funding 
requirement and to finance growth in advances.

15.10 This represent running finance facility amoun�ng to Rs. 486 million at the rate of 3 months KIBOR + 0.50% per annum to 
be paid on quarterly basis. Markup will be calculated on the basis of actual number of days elapsed in the year.

2020 2019

16 SUBORDINATED DEBT Note Rupees Rupees

Term Finance Cer�ficates 16.1 599,160,000                              

2,200,000,000

2,799,160,000

599,400,000 

      4,000,000,000 

      4,599,400,000 

            

Subordinated loan from PTCL 16.2                         
         

16.1 This represents term finance cer�ficates (TFCs) of Rs. 600 million distributed in 120,000 TFCs of Rs. 5,000 each issued as 
subordinated loan in June 2017. The loan is availed as TIER-II subordinated debt for inclusion in the Bank's 
Supplementary Capital. The facility tenure is 7 years and is priced at 6 Month KIBOR + 3.50% (2019: 6 Month KIBOR + 
3.50%). The instrument is structured to redeem 0.02% of principal, semi-annually, over the first 60 months and 
remaining principal of 24.95% each of the issue amount respec�vely, in four equal instalments star�ng from 66th 
month. The TFCs are subordinated as to the payment of principal and profit to all other indebtness of the Bank. The 
ra�ng of these cer�ficates issued by JCR-VIS is A- with an stable outlook.

16.2 This represents unsecured, subordinated debt from PTCL, the Parent Company. The facility tenure is 7 years with grace 
period of 5 years and is priced at 3 Month KIBOR + 2% (2019: 3 Month KIBOR + 2%) per annum. The loan is availed as 
TIER-II subordinated debt for inclusion in the Bank's Supplementary Capital. Loan is structured to redeem in four equal 
semi-annual instalments star�ng from June 2024. The debt is unsecured, subordinated as to the payment of principle 
and profit to all other indebtness of the Bank, including deposit and it is not redeemable before maturity without prior 
approval of the SBP. During the year, the Bank issued 80 million shares by way of other than right shares under sec�on 
83(1)b of the Companies Act, 2017 at par value of Rs. 10 per share to Pakistan Telecommunica�on Company Limited 
(PTCL) by conversion of Tier-II Unsecured & subordinated debt into common shares amoun�ng to Rs. 800 million. 
Further, the Bank and Parent Company PTCL entered into an agreement for the conversion of its Tier II subordinated 
debt amoun�ng to Rs. 1 billion into preference shares subject to regulatory approvals. On 30 December 2020 State 
Bank of Pakistan via le�er no. BPRD/BA&CP/671/014787/2020 granted approval for the said conversion subject to 
certain condi�ons. The Bank shall furnish compliance with the condi�ons for final approval by 31 May 2021. 
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2020 2019

17 OTHER LIABILITIES Note Rupees Rupees

Mark-up / return / interest payable

Accrued expenses

Payable to u�lity companies for u�lity bills collec�on

Taxes payable

Payable to Pakistan Telecommunica�on Company Limited, the Parent Company

Payable to Pak Telecom Mobile Limited (PTML), an associated company

Uncollected remi�ances

Lease liability 

Payable to staff re�rement benefit - gratuity

Payable to defined contribu�on plan - provident fund

Bills payable

Others

Workers' Welfare Fund 

17.1

17.2

17.3

17.4

604,640,989

                                292,234,939 

                                                 -   

                                461,547,577 

                                  31,746,869 

                                  47,034,661 

                                  58,794,815 

                             1,212,010,930 

                                                 -   

                                                 -   

                                  75,971,909 

                                  19,698,438

                                  56,531,500 

                             2,860,212,627 

            

      

        

        

        

        

                     

          

                     

        

          

        

      

 

-

17.1 This includes amount of Rs. 225 million (2019: Rs. 191 million) payable to related par�es on account of markup for the 
month of  December 2020. For details of balances please refer to note 38 to these financial statements.

17.2 Lease liability

Lease liability - right of use assets

2020 2019

Rupees Rupees

1,155,434,087                                   

56,576,843                              

1,212,010,930 

         

               
                     

Lease liabili�es - right of use assets - vehicles

17.2.1

17.2.2

Note

491,831,224

301,681,149 

11,512,274

 

63,427,705 

62,260,334 

                       1,350,956,711 

1,235,802 

3,517,822 

70,834,204 

26,642,836 

32,450,046 

2,416,350,107 

-

-

  1,320,784,590 

        30,172,121 
  1,350,956,711 

Contractual maturity of remaining lease commitments

325,095,559

1,465,495,481

496,665,163

2,287,256,203

         

         

Within one year

Between 2 and 5 years

A�er 5 years
Total un-discounted lease commitments                      

Discounted lease liability using the 

incremental borrowing rate as at 31 December 2019

17.2.1 Lease liability - right of use assets 

     307,300,514 

  1,536,453,350 

     783,308,800 
  2,627,062,664 

  1,320,784,590 1,155,434,087 

Present value 
of minimum 

lease payments

17.2.2 Lease liabili�es - right of use assets - vehicles

2020

Interest cost 
for future 
periods

Future 
minimum lease 

payments 

Not later than one year

Later than one year and not later than five years

13,136,100

43,440,743

56,576,843

2019

Not later than one year

Later than one year and not later than five years

             6,923,279           3,683,953         10,607,232 

           23,248,842           5,907,407         29,156,249 

           30,172,121           9,591,360         39,763,481 

4,489,140

12,854,567

17,343,707

17,625,240       

56,295,310

73,920,550
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17.2.2.1  The Bank has leased vehicles from commercial banks with lease term of five years. These carry finance charge at six 
month KIBOR plus 1% (2019: six month KIBOR plus 0.9%) per annum. The rentals are payable in equal monthly 
instalments in advance upto September 2023. At the end of the lease term, the Bank has the op�on to acquire the 
assets on payment of all instalments. The facility is secured by way of ownership of leased assets.

2020 2019

Rupees Rupees

107,091,392

(114,941,113)

(7,849,721)

         

        

Present value of defined benefit obliga�on

Fair value of plan assets 

Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability

17.3 Movement in the liability recognised in the balance sheet

81,787,046

47,012,418

(11,657,016)

(10,051,056)

107,091,392

         

        

The Bank operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its eligible employees.

Movement in net defined benefit liability - gratuity

Balance at 01 January

Charge for the year

Experience adjustments on defined benefit liability

Benefits paid

Balance at 31 December

17.3.1 Net defined benefit liability - gratuity

        81,787,046 

      (80,551,244)
          1,235,802 

47,612,926 

     37,492,916 

              4,333 

      (3,323,129)

     81,787,046 

Reconcilia�on of liability recognised in the balance sheet

Present value of 

defined benefit 

obliga�on

Fair value of

 plan assets

Net defined 

benefit liability / 

(asset)
2020

Balance at 01 January
Charge for the year
Experience adjustments on defined benefit liability
Benefits paid
Expected return on plan assets
Contribu�ons to gratuity fund
Balance at 31 December

81,787,046
47,012,418

(11,657,016)
(10,051,056)

107,091,392

-
-

(80,551,244)
-

1,293,307
10,051,056

(11,575,627)
(34,158,605)

(114,941,113)

1,235,802
47,012,418

(10,363,709)
-

(11,575,627)
(34,158,605)

(7,849,721)

2019

Balance at 01 January
Charge for the year
Experience adjustments on defined benefit liability
Benefits paid
Benefits paid on behalf of the fund
Expected return on plan assets
Contribu�ons to gratuity fund
Balance at 31 December

47,612,926
37,492,916

4,333
(3,323,129)

-
-
-

81,787,046

(38,575,920)
-

3,780,873
3,323,129

(1,380,036)
(7,987,951)

(39,711,339)
(80,551,244)

9,037,006
37,492,916

3,785,206
-

(1,380,036)
(7,987,951)

(39,711,339)
1,235,802

17.3.2 Charge to profit and loss account net of return on plan assets

Charge for the year
Expected return on assets
Cost for the year

2020 2019

Rupees Rupees

               
                       
                 

47,012,418
(11,575,627)

35,436,791 

37,492,916 
      (7,987,951)
     29,504,965 

17.3.2.1 Expense is recognized in the following line items in profit and loss account

Administra�ve expenses                                   35,436,791         29,504,965 
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17.3.3 Charge / (credit) to other comprehensive income

Actuarial loss on obliga�ons
Actuarial loss on assets

               
                       
                 

(11,657,016)
1,293,307

(10,363,709)

17.3.4 Key actuarial assump�ons

 The latest actuarial valua�on was carried out on 31 December 2020 using projected unit credit method with the 
following assump�ons:

20192020

Valua�on discount rate

Discount rate used for interest cost in profit and loss account

Salary growth rate 

Date of next expected salary increase

Mortality rate

Expected return on plan assets

Dura�on (years)

Withdrawal rates

Re�rement assump�on

10.50%

12.50%

9.50%

01 January 2021

SLIC 2001-2005

10.50%

17.18

Low

Age 60

2020 2019

Rupees Rupees

3,780,873 
              4,333 
       3,785,206 

12.50%

11.50%

01 January 2020

Adjusted SLIC 

2001-2005

12.50%

17.10

Low

Age 60

14.00%

 Assump�on regarding future mortality has been based on State Life Corpora�on (SLIC 2001-2005), ul�mate mortality 
rate with 1 year setback as per recommenda�on of Pakistan Society of Actuaries (PSOA).

17.3.5 Sensi�vity analysis

 For a change of 100 basis points, present value of defined benefit liability at repor�ng date would have been as follows:

2020 2020 2019 2019

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

 Rupees  Rupees  Rupees  Rupees 

Discount rate 88,792,140               124,861,283                                             

Salary increase rate 125,430,130               88,118,230                                             

 

 

94,415,373

66,743,079

67,243,020

94,837,816

17.3.5.1 Although the analysis does not take into account full distribu�on of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide 
an approxima�on of the sensi�vity of the assump�ons shown.

17.3.6 The Bank's expected charge for defined benefit liability - gratuity for the next year is Rs. 34.03 million.

17.3.7 Risks associated with defined benefit liability - gratuity

 Final Salary Risk (linked to infla�on risk)

 The risk that the final salary at the �me of cessa�on of service is greater than what was assumed. Since the benefit is 
calculated on the final salary (which will closely reflect infla�on and other macroeconomic factors), the benefit amount 
increases as salary increases.
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Year 1

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

Year 5

Year 6 to Year 10

Year 11 and beyond

2020 2019

Rupees Rupees

1,936,608 

                                    2,017,575 

                                    2,002,151 

                                    2,001,119 

                                    2,295,101 

                                  12,693,090 

                                837,270,203 

                          

                      

                      

                      

                      

                   

           

1,392,558 

             1,663,456 

             1,682,545 

             1,707,234 

             1,745,122 

           14,720,486 

      1,025,984,160 

 Salary Increase Risk

  - Mortality risk

 The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed mortality. This effect is more pronounced in 
schemes where the age and service distribu�on is on the higher side.

 - Withdrawal Risk

 The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from the assumed withdrawal probability. The significance of the 
withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and the en�tled benefits of the beneficiary.

17.3.8 Expected maturity profile

 Following are the expected distribu�on and �ming of benefit payments at the repor�ng date:

Present value of 

defined benefit 

liability

 Net liability at 

the repor�ng 

date 

17.3.9 Historical informa�on Rupees Rupees

2020

2019

107,091,392 

81,787,046 

47,612,926 

29,488,343 

19,085,965 

        (7,849,721)

          1,235,802 

          9,037,006 

          3,464,570 

             750,00

           

2018           

2017              

2016                   

17.3.10 Fair value of plan assets

Total assets of fund - opening

Expected return on plan assets

Contribu�ons to gratuity fund

Benefits paid on behalf of fund

Benefits paid

Actuarial loss on plan assets

Total assets of fund - closing

80,551,244 

                                  11,575,627 

34,158,605 

(10,051,056)

(1,293,307)

114,941,113 

                

                   

                   

                   

                 

                       

               

2020 2019

Rupees Rupees

17.4 Employees provident fund (Un-audited) (Un-audited)

Size of the fund 172,049,535 
       172,049,535 

 100% 
       172,049,535 

                
Cost of investments held        
Percentage of investments held 
Fair value of investments        

 
 

 

38,575,920 

       7,987,951 

     39,711,339 

       1,380,036 

      (3,323,129)

      (3,780,873)

     80,551,244 

-

     125,859,944  
     125,859,944  

100%
     125,859,944  
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18 SHARE CAPITAL

18.1 Authorized capital

2020 2019 2020 2019

Number Number Rupees Rupees

   800,000,000      8,000,000,000        Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 

 Investments represent balances held with bank carrying interest at rates ranging from of 4.5% to 12% (2019: 6.5% to 
12%) per annum.

 All the investments out of provident fund trust have been made in accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 218 of the 
Companies Act, 2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

800,000,000 8,000,000,000

18.2 Issued, subscribed a  n d paid-up capital

2020 2019

Number Number

20,000,000   20,000,000    200,000,000       200,000,000      

8,571,429     8,571,429      85,714,290         85,714,290        

80,000,000 -         

    308,571,429  228,571,429      2,285,714,290   

Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid in cash

Fully paid shares of Rs. 10 each issued as right

shares at discounted rate of Rs. 7 each

Fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each in cash

issued as other than right shares at par

200,000,000 200,000,000  2,000,000,000    2,000,000,000   Fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each in cash

issued as right shares at par

80,000,000 -

    3,085,714,290

18.3 Pakistan Telecommunica�on Company Limited (PTCL), the Parent Company, holds 100% shares of the Bank.

18.4 All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Bank's residual assets. Holders of these shares are en�tled to 
dividends from �me to �me and are en�tled to one vote per share at general mee�ngs of the Bank.

18.5 This represents Tier II subordinated debt reclassified as advance against issue of preference shares, pursuant to the 
approval of shareholders of the Bank in their Extra Ordinary General Mee�ng held on 28 October 2020. These 
preference shares will be conver�ble into fixed number of ordinary shares of the Bank a�er five years from issuance 
date at discre�on of the Bank subject to the prior approval of SBP. These do not carry vo�ng rights and are en�tled to 
dividend as per discre�on of the Bank. 

 On 30 December 2020 State Bank of Pakistan via le�er no. BPRD/BA&CP/671/014787/2020 allowed the Bank in 
principal to convert Tier II subordinated debt amoun�ng to Rs. 1 billion into preference shares subject to certain 
condi�ons. The Bank is required to furnish compliance with the condi�ons for final approval by 31 May 2021. Approval 
of Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) is pending in this regard.

19 ADVANCE AGAINST ISSUE OF SHARES

 This represents conversion of Tier II subordinated debt amoun�ng to Rs. 1 billion into preference shares subject to 
regulatory approvals. On 30 December 2020 State Bank of Pakistan via le�er no. BPRD/BA&CP/671/014787/2020 
granted approval for the said conversion subject to certain condi�ons. The Bank shall furnish compliance with the 
condi�ons for final approval by 31 May 2021. Approval of Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) is 
pending in this regard.
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20 SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS

Surplus on revalua�on of fixed assets

Surplus/(Deficit) on revalua�on of securi�es

Federal and Provincial Government securi�es - Market Treasury Bills (T-Bills)

Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs)

2020 2019

RupeesRupees

                 648,500 

                   91,234 

               (110,960)

- -

         (10,327,680)

-

           (8,778,528)

Related deferred tax effect

                 628,774 

            1,549,152 

21 DEFERED GRANT

Received during the year

Accumulated amor�za�on

(242,129)

              1,409,888

 

1,409,888 

              1,652,017 

At the beginning of the year

Amor�za�on for the year

At the end of the year

21.1

-

-

-

-

-

-

21.1 This represent grant received under the agreement for Digital Financial Inclusion experiment with Karandaaz to test the 
ideas, products, services, incen�ves and structures that will accelerate the uptake of digital financial services to 
excluded and undeserved segments, especially rural women.

22 MEMORANDUM / OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

22.1 Con�ngencies

There are no material con�ngencies as at 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

2020 2019
12.2 Commitments Note Rupees Rupees

Standby le�er of guarantee 22.3 10,200,000

13,851,935

1,495,500

25,547,435 

                    

Property and equipment                

Intangible assets                  

              

 

 

 

 

22.3 This represents le�er of guarantee issued on behalf of the Bank to China Union Pay Interna�onal Company Limited for 
interbank se�lements.

9,600,000 

     78,008,400 

       1,162,500 

     88,770,900 

2019

23 MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EARNED Rupees

Mark-up / return / interest on advances   

Interest on investments in government securi�es        

Interest on deposit accounts / TDRs with other

     banks / financial ins�tu�ons      

  

24 MARK-UP / RETURN / INTEREST EXPENSED

Mark-up expense on borrowings from banks / financial ins�tu�ons

Mark-up / return / interest expense on deposits

2020

Rupees

9,066,483,022           

489,692,250 

          577,704,233      

10,133,879,505 

    

         

       

    

 

 

 

 

  5,872,629,749 

     301,360,254 

  1,092,327,881 

  7,266,317,884 

  2,346,948,854 

  1,495,560,013 

  3,842,508,867 

2,996,767,901

1,345,120,210

4,341,888,111
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25 FEE, COMMISSION AND BROKERAGE INCOME

Loan processing fee      

Branchless banking        

Other fee income collected from customers          

     

913,067,957

74,723,644

136,858,449

1,124,650,050

       

         
         

       

 

 
 

 

26 OTHER INCOME

Recovery against advances wri�en off 69,499,700

66,395,282

2,475,111

138,370,093

                  

Gain on sale of investments

Other

2019

Rupees

2020

Rupees

     816,128,838 

       60,632,256 
       23,595,550 

     900,356,644 

       37,699,557 

-
         1,376,261 

       39,075,818 

2020 2019

27 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Note Rupees Rupees

Staff salaries and benefits

Charge for defined benefit plan - gratuity

Contribu�on to defined contribu�on plan - provident fund

Non-Execu�ve directors' fee

Financial charges on leased assets

Trainings

Insurance

Rent, rate and taxes

Travelling and conveyance

Postage and courier

U�li�es

Repair and maintenance

Deprecia�on on property and equipment

Amor�za�on of intangible assets

Deprecia�on on right of use assets

So�ware support and maintenance fee

Sta�onery and prin�ng

Auditors' remunera�on 

Legal and professional fee

Security services

Office supplies

Internet and connec�vity charges

NADRA verifica�on charges

Bank charges

Marke�ng expenses

Upaisa expense - branchless banking

Other

1,983,142,486 

         35,436,791 

         37,990,158 

           1,163,406 

       178,910,741 

           1,472,778 

       144,975,545 

         64,789,376 

         38,829,601 

         16,583,160 

       130,593,609 

       208,733,474 

       359,818,212 

         35,647,218 

       264,975,496 

       147,657,297 

         98,092,450 

           4,319,899 

         36,516,066 

       209,561,424 

         24,141,922 

       116,343,293 

         34,688,846 

         26,190,508 

         59,147,972 

                        -   

           5,874,032 

    4,265,595,760 

         

                 

               

                         

                                 

                 

               

           

               

                   

               

               
11.2

11.3

11.4

27.1

             

               

               

                   

               

             

                 

               

               

                 

               

               

                   

      

1,573,113,268

29,504,965 

28,969,891 

458,240 

95,923,953 

11,983,165 

82,049,211 

184,897,509 

90,502,300 

18,759,468 

100,904,186 

157,111,033 

196,292,565 

23,868,065 

129,093,001 

65,885,519 

51,010,352 

4,595,512 

24,070,724 

186,637,662 

30,009,105 

31,939,631 

28,537,005 

20,094,069 

24,802,772 

4,274,816 

11,118,904 

3,206,406,891

350,000

1,150,000

600,000

319,899

1,900,000

-

4,319,899

27.1 Auditors' remunera�on

KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

                                 

                                 

                                 

Half year review 

Annual audit

Fee for cer�fica�ons

Taxa�on services

Advisory services

Out of pocket expenses                    

      

          350,000 

          647,500 

          600,000 

       2,798,012 

                    -   

          200,000 

       4,595,512 
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28 OTHER CHARGES
 

SBP penalty 28.1          

Loss on sale of investments                     

5,477,000

-

5,477,000

28.1 This represents penalty paid during the year related to various non-compliances iden�fied by the State Bank of Pakistan 
during its inspec�on of the Bank.

2019

Rupees

2020

Rupees

5,422,000 

2,243,076 

7,665,076 

2020 2019

29 TAXATION Rupees Rupees

Current - for the year (549,448,880)

(52,310,066)

(601,758,946)

            

   - for prior years                                

            

Deferred            327,927,656                

        (273,831,290)          

Effec�ve tax rate 23.21%

29.1 Tax rate reconcilia�on 2020 2019

Profit before tax and a�er WWF (Rupees)        1,179,991,244              

Tax rate 29% 29%

Tax on accoun�ng profit 29.00%

(8.27%)

4.43%

(1.96%)

23.21%

Tax effect of income taxable at lower rates

Prior year charge
Permanent difference
Tax expense for the year

2020 2019

30 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Rupees Rupees

Cash and balances with SBP and NBP      

Balances with other banks / NBFIs / MFBs      

3,160,116,831

1,908,209,748

5,068,326,579    

 

 

 

 

 

13

6

7

Note

     (81,447,841)

       (1,317,977)

     (82,765,818)

       31,915,009 

     (50,850,809)

16.70%

     304,499,010 

29.00%

(9.95%)

(0.43%)

(1.92%)

16.70%

Note

1,717,205,410 

      3,019,826,466 

      4,737,031,876 
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30.1 Reconcilia�on of movements of liabili�es to cash flow arising from financing ac�vi�es:

Subordinated 

loan

Borrowings Lease liability Share capital Unappropriated 

profit

Balance at 01 January 2020

Addi�ons

Disposals

Change from financing ac�vi�es

Receipts

Payments

Dividend payment Rs.0.32 per share

Other Changes

Interest cost on lease facili�es

Transfer to share capital

Transfer to advance for issuance fo shares

Total comprehensive income

Transfers to

Statutory reserve

Depositors’ protec�on fund

Dividend payment Rs 0.32 per share

Lease facility availed

Balance at 31 December 2020

(Rupees)

     4,599,400,000 6,733,331,333 1,350,956,711

44,997,746

     2,285,714,290 512,586,043

- - - -

- - - -

Advance against

issue of shares

-

-

-

(240,000)

-

(240,000)

136,987,490,862

(130,446,631,552)

6,540,859,310

-

-

-

(362,854,268)

- - -

-

-

-

-

(100,000,000)

- - -

(362,854,268) (100,000,000)

-

(800,000,000)

(1,000,000,000)

-

-

-

-

-

-

(1,800,000,000)

2,799,160,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

13,274,190,643

178,910,741

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

178,910,741

1,212,010,930

-

800,000,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

800,000,000

3,085,714,290

-

-

1,000,000,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000

-

-

-

913,518,187

-

(181,231,991)

(45,307,998)

-

-

686,978,198

1,099,564,241
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32 NUMBER OF BRANCHES

Branches / Service centres at beginning of the year

Opened during the year

- Branches/Booth

- Service centres

Branches / Service centres at end of the year

212

-

-                                          

212

31 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Credit / sales staff

Permanent

Contractual

Banking / support staff

Permanent

Contractual

Total number of employees at 31 December

Average number of employees during the year

2020 2019

113

961

1,074

                                          

                                       

                                       

                                        

                                        

                                     

                     2,695                                   

         2,607                

Numbers Numbers

695

926

1,621

33 EARNING PER SHARE

 Basic

 Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit a�ributable to equity holders of the Bank by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

2020 2019

Profit a�ributable to equity holders (Rupees)

Weighted average number of shares (numbers) 

Earning per share - basic (Rupees)

Diluted - There is no dilu�ve effect on the basic earning per share of the Bank. 

          906,159,954 

          284,309,134 

                       3.19 

127

915 

1,042 

 

 

 

 

                2,600  

         2,376  

683

875 

1,558 

141

61

10 

212

     253,648,201 

     228,571,429 

                  1.11 
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34 DETAILS OF BUSINESS LOCATIONS

The addresses of the branches of the Bank are as follows:

Branch Name Address
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Branch Name Address  
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Branch Name Address
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Branch Name Address
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Branch Name Address
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Address
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35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A FAIR VALUES

35.1 Accoun�ng classifica�ons and fair values

On-balance sheet financial instruments

Fair value Held to Loans Other Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

through maturity and financial

profit and receivables liabili�es

loss

31 December 2020 Note

Financial assets measured at fair value

Investments - net of provisions 9 -

                    

-

                    

   17,954,499,338 

  

-

                     

  17,954,499,338  17,954,499,338 - -  17,954,499,338 

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Cash and cash equivalents 30

35.4

35.4

-

                    

-

                    

    5,068,326,579 

  

-
-

                    

-
-

                     

    5,068,326,579 -
-

-
-

-
-

-
-

Advances - net of provisions 10 -

                    

-

                    

30,006,298,899     

7,778,962,301 

  

-

                    

-

                     

- - - -

Other assets 12 & 35.2 -

                    

-

                        

-

                    

-

                     

- - - -

-

                                        

  42,853,587,779 

  

-

                    

-

                     

  48,973,587,779 - - - -

Financial liabili�es not measured at fair value

Deposits and other accounts 14 -

                    

-

                    

-

                      

-

                    

46,104,640,853   

13,274,190,642     

2,799,160,000     

2,548,385,962   

64,726,377,457 

  

 46,104,640,853   

13,274,190,642     

2,799,160,000     

2,548,385,962   

64,726,377,457 

- - - -

Borrowings 15 -

                    

-

                    

-

                      

-

                        

- - - -

Subordinated debt 16 -

                    
-

                    
-

                      
-

                        
- - - -

Other liabili�es 17 & 35.3 -
                    

-
                    

-
 

-
                           

- - - -

-                     -                     -                       -                       - - - -

Available for 

sale

Carrying amount Fair value

Rupees Rupees

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabili�es, including their 
levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value informa�on for financial assets and financial liabili�es not 
measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approxima�on of fair value.

35.2

35.3

35.4

It excludes advances taxa�on and inventory of ATM cards & sta�onery.

It excludes accrued expenses and others.

The Bank has not disclosed the fair values for these financial assets and financial liabili�es because their carrying

amounts are a reasonable approxima�on of fair value.

On-balance sheet financial instruments

Fair value Held to Loans Other Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

through maturity and financial

profit and receivables liabili�es

loss

31 December 2019 Note

Financial assets measured at fair value

Investments - net of provisions 9 -

                    

-

                    

           6,969,538,668 

  

-

                     

 6,969,538,668  6,969,538,668 - -  6,969,538,668 

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Cash and cash equivalents 30

35.4

35.4

-

                    

-

                    

                      4,737,031,876 

  

-

                    

-

                     

      4,737,031,876 - - - -

Advances - net of provisions 10 -

                    

-

                    

                    21,374,079,265 

  

-

                    

-

                     

    21,374,079,265 - - - -

Other assets 12 & 35.2 -

                    

-

                    

                      3,801,022,253 

    

-

                    

-

                     

      3,801,022,253 - - - -

-

                    

-

                    

                    29,912,133,394 

  

-

                    

-

                     

    29,912,133,394 - - - -

Financial liabili�es not measured at fair value

Deposits and other accounts 14 -

                    

-

                    

-

                      

-

                    

    23,290,259,471 

  

    23,290,259,471 - - - -

Borrowings 15 -

                    

-

                    

-

                      

-

                    

      6,733,331,333 

    

      6,733,331,333 - - - -

Subordinated debt 16 -

                    
-

                    
-

                      
-

                    
      4,599,400,000 

    
      4,599,400,000 - - - -

Other liabili�es 17 & 35.3 -
                    

-
                    

-
                      

-
                    

      2,088,026,122 
       

      2,088,026,122 - - - -

-                     -                     -                       -                         36,711,016,926       36,711,016,926 - - - -

Available for 

sale

Carrying amount Fair value

Rupees Rupees

9Investments - net of provisions

-

    6,120,000,000 -     6,120,000,000 

30,006,298,899     

7,778,962,301 

    6,120,000,000 

B FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

35.5 Interest / mark-up rate risk 

 Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in the market interest 
rates. The Bank’s interest rate exposure is low due to the short-term nature of the majority of business transac�ons. 
Interest rate risk is also controlled through flexible credit pricing mechanism and variable deposit rates. Op�miza�on of 
yield is achieved through the Bank’s investment strategy which aims on a�aining a balance between yield and liquidity 
under the strategic guidance of Assets and Liability Commi�ee of Management (ALCO).
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35.6 Credit risk

 Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obliga�on and cause the other party 
to incur a financial loss. The Bank’s credit risk is primarily a�ributable to its advances and balances at banks. The credit 
risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter par�es are banks with reasonably high credit ra�ngs. The Bank has an 
effec�ve loan disbursement and recovery monitoring system which allows it to evaluate borrowers’ credit worthiness 
and iden�fy poten�al problem loans. A provision for loan losses is maintained as required by the Pruden�al 
Regula�ons. Investments are mainly in government securi�es or other securi�es having good credit ra�ng. Maximum 
amount of financial assets which are subject to credit risk amount to Rs. 66,478 million (2019: Rs. 32,145 million).

32.7 Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will not be able to raise funds to meet its commitments. At present, the bank is not 
exposed to this risk as there is sufficient cash placed with various commercial banks at the year end.

 The Assets and Liability Management Commi�ee (ALCO) of the Bank is responsible for the oversight of liquidity 
management and meets on a monthly basis or more frequently, if required. The Bank’s approach to liquidity 
management is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabili�es when due, 
under both normal and stressed condi�ons, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking sustained damage to 
business franchises. A centralized approach is adopted, based on an integrated framework incorpora�ng an assessment 
of all material known and expected cash flows and the availability of collateral which could be used to secure addi�onal 
funding if required. The framework entails careful monitoring and control of the daily liquidity posi�on, and regular 
liquidity stress tes�ng under a variety of scenarios. These encompass both normal and stressed market condi�ons, 
including general market crises and the possibility that access to markets could be impacted by a stress event affec�ng 
some part of the Bank’s business.

36 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

36.1 The objec�ve of managing capital is to safeguard the Bank’s ability to con�nue as a going concern, so that it could 
con�nue to provide adequate returns and benefits to stakeholders by pricing products and services commensurately 
with the level of risk. It is the policy of the Bank to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and 
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The impact of the level of capital on 
shareholders’ return is also recognised and the Bank recognises the need to maintain a balance between the higher 
returns that might be possible with greater gearing and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital 
posi�on.

36.2 The Bank’s objec�ves when managing its capital are:

 - To comply with the capital requirements set by the SBP.

 - To safeguard the Bank’s ability to con�nue as a going concern so that it can con�nue to provide returns for shareholders 
and benefits for other stakeholders.

 - To maintain a strong capital base to support the development of its business.

36.3 Statutory minimum capital requirement and management of capital

 As per amendments on Pruden�al Regula�ons (R-1) issued vide BPRD Circular No. 10 of 2015 dated 3 June 2015, the 
minimum paid up capital requirement (MCR), free of losses for Microfinance Banks opera�ng at na�onal level is Rs. 
1,000 million as at 31 December 2020. As of 31 December 2020, the net equity of the Bank stood at Rs. 5,676 million 
(2019: Rs.  3,051 million).

 The capital of the Bank is managed keeping in view the minimum CAR (15%) required by the Pruden�al Regula�ons for 
Microfinance Banks / Ins�tu�ons. The adequacy of the capital is tested with reference to the risk-weighted assets of the 
Bank. The calcula�on of capital adequacy enables the Bank to assess the long-term soundness. As the Bank conducts 
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 President / 

Chief 

Execu�ve 

Directors  Execu�ves  President / 

Chief 

Execu�ve 

Directors  Execu�ves 

Fee -
                

    1,100,000                    -   
 

Managerial remunera�on 15,525,147   

20,150,159     

1,293,763     

1,242,014     

9,056,338     

1,293,763            

9,000     

1,200,000     

3,726,260

     
                   -   

Bonus                    -   

Gratuity fund                    -   

Provident fund                    -   

Rent and house maintenance                    -   

U�li�es                    -   

Medical                    -   

Conveyance          63,406 

Others                    -   

Total   53,496,444        1,163,406            286,198,892  

Number of person(s)                     1                     9 51

RupeesRupees

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

51                    9                    1 

121,536,386      

21,966,401      

10,129,198        

9,514,662      

70,896,224      

10,128,032        

5,729,168      

25,613,248      

10,685,573 

37.1 Execu�ve means an employee whose annual basic salary exceeds Rs. 1.20 million (2019: Rs. 1.20 million) during the 
year.

37.2 Bank maintained vehicles are also provided to the chief execu�ve officer and some of the execu�ves as per their 
en�tlement; the net book values of which are Rs. 66.385 million (2019: Rs. 39.593 million).

37.3 No remunera�on and other benefits were paid to directors of the Bank. An amount of Rs. 1,163,406 (2019: Rs. 458,240) 
was paid to the independent directors for a�ending the Board or sub commi�ee mee�ngs.

business on a wide area network basis, it is cri�cal that Bank con�nuously monitor the exposure across the en�re 
organiza�on.

 The Bank manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of the changes in regulatory and economic 
condi�ons. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Bank may adjust the return on capital to 
shareholders or issue new shares.

 As at 31 December 2020, the Bank’s Capital adequacy ra�o (CAR) was appropriately 21.69% (2019: 16.67%) of its 
weighted exposure, as against the minimum requirement of 15% prescribed by SBP.

37 REMUNERATION OF PRESIDENT/CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

-
                

13,297,996 

   6,156,480 

   1,092,775 

   1,063,837 

   7,757,164 

   1,108,166 

      140,962 

      900,000 

   2,584,485

     

  34,101,865    

        440,000 

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

                   -   

          18,240 

                   -   

        458,240         

                   -   

   275,110,638  

112,432,132 

   33,354,233 

     9,266,863 

     8,457,361 

   65,585,410 

     9,369,345 

     5,356,566 

   21,526,839 

     9,761,889 
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38 SCHEDULE OF MATURITY DISTRIBUTION OF MARKET RATE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT 31 DECEMBER 2020

                         
                            

 Total  Up to one month 
 Over one month up 

to six months 

 Over six months up 

to one year 
 Over one year 

Market rate assets
Advances 30,006,298,899     

24,074,499,338 

      2,346,507,295     

56,427,305,532 

1,249,286,833          

120,000,000 

      2,346,507,295       

3,715,794,128 

11,399,127,605

15,353,439,449

26,752,567,054

       13,118,217,206

1,000,000,000 

       14,118,217,206 

        4,239,667,255

7,601,059,889   

 

   

      11,840,727,144 

Investments -
Other earning assets

Balances with other banks - deposit accounts - - -

Total market rate assets

Other non-earning assets
Cash in hand 920,790,506    

2,239,326,325         

11,702,453    

2,917,413,581    

7,797,247,350       

399,616,598

14,286,096,813

    70,713,402,345  

            

920,790,506       

2,239,326,325            

11,702,453            

55,036,744       

1,002,184,804                          

-         

4,229,040,832       

7,944,834,960 

           

-

                            

- -
Balances with SBP and NBP - current accounts

                       

-

                            

- -
Balances with other banks - current accounts

                           

-

                            

- -
Opera�ng fixed assets

                                        

330,220,463          

2,217,391,528 
2,256,972,655

900,420,036

399,616,598

3,557,009,289

15,397,736,433 

Other assets

                                 

Deferred tax asset

                                        

-

                            

-

Total non-earning assets

                 

        3,952,434,701       

30,705,001,755 

             

         2,547,611,991        

16,665,829,197 Total assets

                       

Market rate liabili�es

Large �me deposits above Rs. 100,000 26,082,756,214          

274,917,117     

16,802,040,082     

16,073,350,642     

59,233,064,055 

       

1,606,171,000              

5,468,000     

16,802,040,082       

6,654,540,000     

25,068,219,082 

        

16,395,396,224              

42,099,174                             

1,793,278,987       

18,230,774,385 

          

4,864,085,706               

86,442,500                             

1,493,278,989          

6,443,807,195 

3,217,103,284

140,907,443

6,132,252,666

9,490,263,393

All other �me deposits (including fixed rate deposits)

                                          

Other cost bearing deposits

                 

-

                            

- -
Borrowings

                               

Total market rate liabili�es

                         

Other non-cost bearing liabili�es

Deposits 2,944,927,440       

2,860,212,627       

5,805,140,067 

                 

-

                            

- -
Other liabili�es

                                                   

- -

Total non-cost bearing liabili�es

                                             
- -

Total liabili�es
                       

Net assets                          

Rupees

65,038,204,122       

5,675,198,223 

2,944,927,440       

2,827,761,403       

5,772,688,843 

30,840,907,925   

(22,896,072,965)

18,263,225,609       

12,441,776,146 

6,443,807,195        

10,222,022,002 

9,490,263,393         

5,907,473,040 

SCHEDULE OF MATURITY DISTRIBUTION OF MARKET RATE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

                         
                            

 Total  Up to one month 
 Over one month up 

to six months 

 Over six months up 

to one year 
 Over one year 

Market rate assets
Advances 21,374,079,265

6,969,538,668

3,009,485,364

31,353,103,297

1,260,350,530 

       4,229,036,668 

 

       3,009,485,364 

    8,498,872,562 

8,906,956,430

   

 

   

8,906,956,430 

8,246,121,994 

2,740,502,000 

 

   

10,986,623,994 

2,960,650,311 

   

 

   

2,960,650,311 

Investments -
Other earning assets

Balances with other banks - deposit accounts - - -

Total market rate assets

Other non-earning assets
Cash in hand 618,822,600 

1,098,382,810 

10,341,102 

3,104,521,964 

3,828,677,455 

76,354,529

            

618,822,600 

       1,098,382,810 

           10,341,102 

           96,350,432 

1,340,525,466 

- 

           

-

                            

- -
Balances with SBP and NBP - current accounts

                       

-

                            

- -
Balances with other banks - current accounts

                           

-

                            

- -
Opera�ng fixed assets

                         

               145,522,346 

            1,785,322,698 

               

                174,626,816 

                652,488,040 

2,688,022,370 

             50,341,251 

             76,354,529 

Other assets

                                 

Deferred tax asset

                                        

-

                            

-

Total non-earning assets

                 

         1,930,845,044 

       10,837,801,474 

             

             827,114,856 

       11,813,738,850 Total assets

                       

Market rate liabili�es

Large �me deposits above Rs. 100,000 14,499,422,805 

          337,000,495 

        6,071,321,337 

      11,332,731,333 

   32,240,475,970 

       

654,837,996 

             8,136,300 

       6,071,321,337 

       3,250,000,000 

    9,984,295,633 

        

5,844,176,237 

43,781,145 

383,453,000 

6,271,410,382 

          

4,482,786,909

65,252,290

   

383,453,000 

4,931,492,199 

3,517,621,663

219,830,760 

   

7,315,825,333 

11,053,277,756 

All other �me deposits (including fixed rate deposits)

                                          

Other cost bearing deposits

                 

-

                            

- -
Borrowings

                               

Total market rate liabili�es

                         

Other non-cost bearing liabili�es

Deposits 2,382,514,834

2,416,350,107

4,798,864,941

                 

-

                            

- -
Other liabili�es

                       

-

                            

- -

Total non-cost bearing liabili�es

                 
-

                            
- -

Total liabili�es
                       

Net assets                          

Rupees

-

     8,737,100,460 

   40,090,203,757

    3,164,422,410 

  11,663,294,972 

        2,814,718,150 

        5,775,368,461 

37,039,340,911

3,050,862,846

2,382,514,834 

2,416,350,107 

4,798,864,941

14,783,160,574 

(3,119,865,602)

         6,271,410,382 

         4,566,391,092 

         4,931,492,199 

         6,882,246,651 

      11,053,277,756 

       (5,277,909,295)

                           275,183,719         

3,677,250,982 

32,451,224              

32,451,224 
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39 RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Parent Company

Internet, connec�vity, u�lity and rental charges

U�lity Bill collected on behalf of the Parent Company

Payment in regards u�lity bills collected on behalf of the Parent Company

U�lity Bill collec�on charges

Payment for administra�ve costs and fixed assets

Interest expense on TIER-II subordinated Debt Payment

Interest expense on deposits

Interest expense on PTCL employee GP fund

Associated Company - Pak Telecom Mobile Limited (PTML)

Payment for administra�ve costs and fixed assets

Payment against branchless banking and bills collected

Amount received against reimbursement of agent's commission

Associated Company - Pakistan Telecommunica�on Employees Trust (PTET)

Interest expense on deposits

Employees' provident fund

Contribu�on to provident fund

Employees' gratuity fund

Payment to gratuity fund

Transac�ons

Transac�ons

Parent Company

Deposits

Interest payable on deposits

Payable against u�lity bills collected

U�lity bills collec�on charges receivable

Employee GP fund

2020 2019

 Note Rupees Rupees

 

 

 

 
         

                            

57,777,575

234,305,055

220,636,867

      

    

      

         

                     

                                 
      200,019,672 

                                    37,990,158 

               

        35,436,791 

                
384,478,758

-

122,902

1,792,839

2,171,917,933

14.2

17.1

17

12

14.2

Balances

The Bank is a subsidiary of Pakistan Telecommunica�on Company Limited ("the Parent Company"). Therefore all 
subsidiaries and associated undertakings of the Parent Company are related par�es of the Bank. Other related par�es 
comprise of directors, key management personnel, en��es over which the Bank has significant influence, en��es having 
common directors and en��es over which the directors are able to exercise significant influence and employees 
re�rement benefit funds. Detail of transac�ons during the year and balances outstanding as at the repor�ng date are as 
follows:

46,526,479         

77,564,465         

77,564,465               

680,581       

116,070,946       

413,344,914                           

-         

198,384,839 

29,537,871            

73,481,447            

73,445,499                 

370,077          

223,335,980          

565,433,425                     

4,317          

172,443,292 

27

17.3.10

64,109,304

    237,687,068

    248,163,152

135,468,435

        28,969,891 

        41,091,375 

565,522,573 

                  374 

             35,948 

        1,792,839 

 1,383,127,074 

Interest payable on deposits - PTCL Employees' GP Fund 17.1       198,384,839                         7,130,217          

Associated Company - Pakistan Telecommunica�on Employees Trust

Deposits 14.2 1,916,265,365         

25,232,911 

         

Interest payable on deposits 17.1                   

Balances

2020 2019

 Note Rupees Rupees

   1,050,001,647 

        39,378,995 
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39.1 Following are par�culars of related par�es of the Bank with their respec�ve shareholding:

2020 2019

 Note Rupees Rupees

Associated Company - Pak Telecom Mobile Limited

Employees' Gratuity fund 14.2

14.2

720,259,489

93,179,809

61,034,661

              177,534

       

Payable against branchless banking and bills collected 17          

Payable to Pak Telecom Mobile Limited

Interest payable on deposits 17.1                                  

                                 

Employees' provident fund

Deposits

Interest payable on deposits

Payable to provident fund

14.2

17.1

17

172,049,535

262,465

1,391,950 

        125,859,943

1,272,161

3,517,822

            

Name Share-holding

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

Mr. Burak Sevilengul

Mr. Nadeem Khan

Mr. Mohamed Essa Al Taheri

Mr. Muhammad Aqueel Abbas Malik

Mr. Sher Afgan Khan

Mr. Muhammad Jahanzeb Rahim

Ms. Misbah Naqvi

Mr. Kabeer Naqvi

PTCL

Director/Chairman

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director/CEO

Parent Company

01

01

01

01

02

01

01

01

-

 308,571, 422 

Basis of rela�onship  Percentage of shareholding 

                

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

99.99%

400,088,157

-

63,427,705

 

352,811 

       

         

                                 

                                 

Employees' gratuity fund

Deposits

Interest payable on deposits

Payable to gratuity fund

114,941,113

772,263

7,849,721

                   80,010,244

541,000

1,235,802

14.2

17.1

17.3

Deposits

40 COMPLAINTS MANAGEMENT MECHANISM

 The Bank is a customer oriented organiza�on and gives due considera�on to the valuable feedback of its customers. 
Complaints are treated as opportunity to align our products/services and processes to serve the customers in a best 
possible way. A Complaints Resolu�on Unit (CRU) has been established in the Bank in line with applicable regulatory 
requirement and Bank’s own policy drive. The Unit is equipped with Complaints Management System (CMS) to record, 
escalate and resolve complaints received through available channels. All calls/complaints are recorded in Complaints 
Management System against a unique �cket number and acknowledged to the customer for tracking its resolu�on. 
Scenario based work codes are embedded in the system with the escala�on matrix. Periodic reviews are also conducted 
and results are shared with the management for their informa�on. Duly approved Complaints Resolu�on and Financial 
Consumer Protec�on Policies are in place to protect the rights and interests of the customers. During the year 29,419 
(2019: 24,932) complaints were received by the Bank and were resolved with average resolu�on �me of 33.37 hours 
(2019: 45.84 hours).
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41 IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 Tn 30 January 2020, the World Health Organiza�on (WHO) declared the outbreak a “Public Health Emergency of 
Interna�onal Concern” and on 11 March 2020, the WHO declared the COVID-19 outbreak to be a pandemic in 
recogni�on of its rapid spread across the globe. Many countries, including Pakistan, have taken stringent steps to help 
contain further spread of the virus. While these events and condi�ons have resulted in general economic uncertainty, 
however, to dampen the adverse effects of COVID-19 and to enable the Microfinance Banks con�nue to fulfill their role 
in funding the real economy, SBP issued Circular dated 26 March 2020 regarding “Regulatory relief to dampen the 
effects of COVID-19”. This circular allowed certain relaxa�ons to MFBs where MFBs could defer / restructure principal / 
markup amounts. Management has evaluated the impact of COVID-19 and concluded that there are no material 
implica�ons of COVID-19 on the opera�ons of the Bank that require specific disclosure in the financial statements 
except for those already disclosed in notes 10.1 and 10.5 of these financial statements. 

42 GENERAL

42.1 Cap�ons, as prescribed by BSD Circular No. 11, dated 30 December 2003 issued by SBP, in respect of which there are no 
amounts, have not been reproduced in these financial statements, except for the cap�ons of the balance sheet and 
profit and loss account.

43 DATE OF APPROVAL

 These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Bank in their mee�ng held on
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8 February 2021

PRESIDENT / CHIEF EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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